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Dixons Academies Trust
Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and manage ment

Our Trustees [who ane also dirgctors of the chasity for the purposes of the Companies Act) present thedr annual report, together with the
financial statements and awditor’s report, of Dixons Academies Trust for the year ended 31 August 2023, The annual report serves the
purpases of both a trustees’ report, a directors’ report and a strategic report under company Law,

Diur trust operates acadermies for students aged 3 ta 19 serving a catchment area in the Inner-city communities of Leeds, Bradford,
Manchestar and Liverpoed, It has o pupll capacity of 15,105 and had & roll of 13,970 in the schosd cendut on S October 2023,

A Constitution

Dixons Academles Trust s a company limited by guarantes and an exempt charity. Its registered office & situated in England and Wales.
The company was first established on & Octaber 1988, The Charitable Company’s Memorandurm and Articbes of Assodiation (dated 28
tdarch 2018) are the primary governing docurnents of owr trust.

Owr trustess are responsible for the charitable activities of our trust and are the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes
of company law. Thi Charitable Company operates as Dieons Academbes Trust,

Details of our trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved ane Incleded in the reference and
adrministrative details on page 3.

The principal activitles and objectives of ouwr trust are the advancement of education for public benefit in the United Kingdom by
estabiishing, maintaining and developing high perfarming schoals.

Our schoals are nationally recognised for offering an ambitiows curriculum underpinned by a strong values-driven culture and a relentiess
focus on the highest standards of student achigvement.

Our students mest and work tagether in harmaniows and happy schoal eommunitied drawn from all cultures and backgrounds across
our fowr citles, We balieve our students have a key role to play in the sconomic develapment and social regeneration of our cities in the
naxt peneration and beyond,

b. Members’ lability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the event of it being
wiound up while thay are a member, or within ene year after they cease 1o be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding
£10 for the debts and llabilitles contracted befose they ceased to ke a member,

€. Trustees' indemnities

There are no qualifying third-party Indamnilty prosdsions in place fn respect of trusteas, other than trustees and officers’ insuramce, whick
i% in place.

d. Method of recrultment and appeintment or election of Trustess

The members of Divons Academies Trust are responsitle for the appointment of cur trust Board and the chairs of the local academmy
board.

All trustees and local ambassadors are appointed based upan the contribution they can make to the development and future success of
our trust. Except for staff asmbassadors, no trustees or ambassadors recelve remunéeration for thelr services ather than reasonable out
of pocket expanses.

In crdier to keep a balance of skills and expartise on each local board, trustees considers any skill gaps and may approach individwals (this
may Include parents) explaining the type of skills set or expertise out trust is keoking for. |dentified individuals will be invited to put their
names forward, In the ase of parent ambassadors, if more than one parent edpresses an interest, then it may be necessary to hold an
election within the parent body of the academy In guestion,

in ardes to find the people with the appropriate skils, there may be occasions where agencies are approached to see IF thay can help owr
trust ta find potéential trustees with the requined skill sats,

A shom application form will be completed and the individual will be invited to meet key staff and trustees or mambers. If an
agpaintment is made, the sueeesalfid individual will receive an induction appropriate to thelr new role.

&, Policies and procedures adopted for the Induction and waining of Trustees

Mew trustees ane Inducted into the working of our trust, including policles and procedures, at arranged meetings with the Chief Executive
with suppodt from the head of governance and executive services. The training and induction provided will depend on the ndividual
trustees’ skill ser and experience. Where appropriate, induction will include training on educational, charity, egal and financial matters
[with coples of policies, procedures, minutes, budget plans, management accounts and other appropriate documentation).
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Dixons Academies Trust
Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

f. Organisational structure
The organisticnal structure of our trsst Is based on the principles that:
» Our members of the academy define the object, purpose and ethos of the compary,

# Our trustees, who form the trust board, have owerall responsibility and ultimate declslon-making authosdty for ol the work of the
Commipany, inthuding the establishing and running of schooks and, In particular, each academy as a school, This is largely exercised
through strategic planning and the setting of policy. it ks managed through the business planning, monitoring of budgets, perfanmance
appraisal, the setting and monitoring of standards and the implamentation of guality assurance processes,

& Oy trustees have the power to direct change where reguired to ensura that thie ohject, purpase and ethas of the Company are mat.

= Dur trustess may delegate some responsibilities for the day-to-day operation of gach academy directly to a local academy board (LAR]
through a Scheme of Delegation (the Scheme), A single LAB oversees a cluster of up to three academses, but the funding granted for
each pcadermy must be applied only to that academy subject to the requirement of the scheme. The principal of each academy is an
e officia ambassador of the LA,

= Jur executive team, consisting of the chief executive officer and executive leaders, control our trustfacade mies at an executher level
by implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them regularly. The principals across our trust are
responsible for the suthorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff at their acadermy, Some spending
control is devalved to members of their senlor keadership team with financlal Bmits above which a senfor manager must countersign,

ndividual academy senlor leadorship teams include the prancipal, vioe principals, assistent principals and the operations and business
manager. These managers are responsible for the day-te-day eperation of the seademy, in particular organising tesching staff, facilities

and students,

® o SNt oUr trustess in their work, our trust has established the three following sub-committeas:

o Audit and risk commitbes
o Finance commilles
o Remuneration committes

Owir trust consists of the following academies:

Academy Darte boimid Type

Dixons City Academy september 2005 Secondary

Dixons Alkerton Acadenmy Septembaer 2009 All-through Acadeny
Diwons Trinity Academy September 2012 Secondary

Diwcons Music Primary Loptembar 2012 Prirnary

Dixans Marchbank Pricmary Jenuary 2014 Primary

Dixans MchMillan Academy Septesmber Hld Secondary

Dixons Manningham Primary Janyary 2015 Primary

Dixons Kings Academy January 2015 Secondary

Dirons Trintty Chapeltowm Academy September 2017 All-through Acadesrry
Dixons Cottingley Acadermy July 2018 Secondary

Dixons Linity Acadery October 2018 Secondary

Dixgns Sixth Form September 2019 Past-16

Dimans Fazakerlsy Acadery September 2021 Lecondary

Dixans Broadgreen Academy Decamber 2021 Secondary J/ Past-16

Dirans Brooklands Academy lanuary HE2 Secondary

Dimons Croxteth Academy Movember 2022 Sacondary

Dixons Noewall Grean Academy September H023 Secondary
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g Pay policy for key management personnel

Principals and othar educational sender leaders are paid by reference to national leadership pay scales. Salary ranges arg constifent
across our trgst and are dependant on senionty of position and size of schaol. The chief executive officer & on a salary agreed by the
remundgration commitites after benchmarking against similar-sized trusts. The remunerstion committes meets annually 1o review all key

personnel salaries
Trade union facility time
Dixons Academbes Trust published its trade wnion facility time below for the period ending 31 August 2023:

fetewant unlon officials

Nurmber of employess who were relevant union officials dising | Full-tire sgquivalent employees number
the relovant period

20 19.6
Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
e 9

1% - 500 11

51% - 99%

1003

Percentage of pay bill spent on facllity thme

Propicle the tatal cost of facility ime £10,923

Provide the total pay ball £72,006026

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, | 0.015%
calculated as: {total cost of facility timeftotal pay bill) x 100

Paid trade unlon activities

Tirme spent on paid trade wlon activities as a percentage of total | 100%
paid facility time hours caloulated as:

(tatal hours spent on pald trade unlon activities by relevant
unkgn officials during the refevant pernod total paid Tacility tirme
heurs) = 100

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Owr trust has conmections with the following organisations:

® Trust board chair, Mike Blackburn OBE, iz a director at Mike Blackbuem Ltd, a director at the Growth Company and The Lowry Centre
Trust, and governar of GM International Marketing Advisory Board,

# Trust board wice chalr, John Bowers MBE, ks an educational consultant for Ambition Institute, trastes at Minerva Acadermy Trust, and
governor at Clareborough Primany Schood, Manor Park and Great Marow Schoal

® Trustee and finance committes chair, Brent Fitzpatrick MBE, i a mamber of Baceed Academies Trust [an exermgt charity], 8 member
of the National Governance Assaciation, and a trustee at Pennine Academies, Yorkshire, Director at Low Wave Lud, Waste and Recycling
Solutions Ltd, SPVH0Z Limited, Shellhound Plc, UAEA P, and ULK Space Pic

= Trustee, member of the audit and risk cormmittea and chair of governors for Dioons Marchbank / Dixons Manningham Primary, Buby
Bhatti OBE, is a non-exetutive director of Carfisle Business Centre, NED for Action for Commundty Ltd and Arise Yoricshire Ltd, and a
trustee of Bradford Diocesan Acaderny Trust, Director at Active Bradford Limited, The Priestley Academy Trust, The Girlington Centre
Lismited and Girlington Community Association

= Chigf Executive Officer, Luke Sparkes, 5 8 trustee of the Confederation of Schoal Trusts [CST).
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Dixons Academies Trust
Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

# Farmer CEQ (resigned 31 October 2022, Sir Nick Waeller, Is a Trustee of New Schoods Network, Director, Beckloat Trust, Director,
Wenture Trust and current CEQ of Academy Transformation Trust

= Deputy chief executive officer: Finance and Operation [resigned 31 October 2023), Amanda Balley |5 a gavernor for the Apprentice
Acadeny.

& Audit and risk committes member, Helen Thormton is the Chief People Officer, Independent Wealth Planners and Director of Seosh
Ludl,

Ay trandactions with the above connected crganisations comply with the reguirerments et out in the Academies Trust Handbaok,

Engagement with employees [including disabled persons)

Our brust continuously seeks to encourage the Involvement of is emiployees in its managemant through an annual conference, eydical
executive updates and academy visits, weokdy check-in meetings for leaders, and our weekly trust-wits emall newslatter Team Dixons.
Ermphoyess are consulted on isues of concern to them through consultative meetings and are kept informed of specific policies directly
by management.

D trust will employ disabled persons when they appear 1o be suitable for the robe and every effart Is made to ensure thoy are given
full and fair consideration, There are policies in place (Equality and Déversity palicy, Heakth and Safety palicy atc.] so that emaloyees,
who have bean Injured or disabled during the cowrse of thedr employment can, where possible, continee with thelr employment,

During their amployment, our trust seeks to work with employees, taking into account their personsl cincirmsiances, b endure
appropriate training, development and advancemaent opportuntties are available to enable them to reach their full potential,

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with our academy trust

A5 the trust board at Divons Academies Trust, we have a legal responsibility under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in good
faith in @ way which would be maost Bely to promate the compary's sucoess for the benefit of its members as a whole, and to have
regarnd to the long-tenm effect of our decisions on the company and its stalboholders. This statement addresses the ways in which, asa
trust board, we carry out this responsibillity,

Promoting our trust's success

Our trust is stromgly committed to serdng aneas In the Marth to transform the life chances of children and their communéties through the
highest-quality teaching. Dixons’ academies serve argas with high levels of students eligible for free school meals and with special
educational needs and disabilities and are continually looking to expand to reach as many children as possible to Imprave their quality
of life. Strategic decisions are based on the long-term objective of growth for owr trust, maximising the number of children whose life
chances can be improved,

Our students and parents

As a trust, we put our stidents at the heart of everything we do. That s part of our trust’s culbure: the parents of the students in our
academies are continuously informed of the progress of their children and the safeguanding measures in place to ensure the safety of
their children. We communicate with parents through letters, telephane calls [ texts and emalls te ensure that thay are constantly aware
of the activities of our trust. We organise parent-teaches mestings and Esten to panents’ concerns to Improve the sendoe we provide.

Cur employees

Our trustees recognise that employees ane fundamental and key to delivering the strategic plan of our trust. The success of our trust
depends on attracting. retaining and motivating its talent. We help to engage with our empioyvess by setting remuneration at a
competithie rate compared to national rates and providing a rigorous profiessional development review process and intensive coaching.
All staff alsp have access to an Employes Assistance Programme (EAP]. The EAP is a confidential counselling and information senvice,
which s avallable 24/7, to assist staff with personal or work-related problems that may affect their health, wellbeing and performance,

Our suppliors

AL B LFUEE, W Birf to maintain the highest possible standards of Integrity in business relationships with suppliers. \We rely on our suppliers
Lo defiver learning materisls, catering and food supplies to our individual academiss on a timely manner, which are key to the service we
providi.

We communicate with our suppliers through emails, specifically designed supplier forms and letters to update on any changes on terms
and conditions. Our suppliers all have a direct channel of contacting our trust for any changes on thelr supplier accounts, which are
actianed promptly to avold ary delay in payment. During the financial year, our trust remadned committed to prompt payment terms to
ensurg falr payment practices,

Our regulatory funding partners

Ower trust board believes that constant engagerment with the ESFA, Local Authorities and other gowernment agencles Is vital to our
success. 'We continue to engage with our demors and spansars thraugh reports, onling meetings and publications on our website, During

oy Araderass Truw
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the year, we have complied with all the financlal and non-financial requirements of owr donors and sponsors and submisted timely
reports and returns. Our chief executive officer and executive directors have ensured that our trust adhenes to all regulatory and begal
requiresents in delivering educational service and activities,

Our planet

Dwr trust board is committed ta reducing aur carbon footprint. We are installing LED lights on a relling programme S6ro8s aur academies
and working with an energy consultant o Improve the energy efficiency of owr bulldings whese pastible. Ensagy consurmption i
particularhy relevant ghoen the increase in the unit price of gas and electricity and aur trust is looking &t & number of ways to reduce
energy consumgtion including chosing bulldings earky, blanket switch off of IT devices overnight, improving the ingulation of aur buildengs
and updating beating equipment to more energy efficient plant. We dispose of waste responsibly and recycle materials where possible,

Fublic banefit

Our trustess confirm that they have complied with the requirements aof Section 17 of the Charities fct 2011 1o have due regard to pulblic
benefit in determining the activities undertaken by our trust and have comgplied with the guidance issued by the Charity Commission
relating to public benafit. Dur trust i keen to emphaiise the public benefin provided by owr trust, which can be seen by the activitias,
and perfarmance autlined within the trustees’ repodt.

Strategic Report prepared by the Chief Executive Officer
About cur trust

Cuir frust board, executive team and staff are all strongly committed to serving areas in the Morth with a history of poor education ta
transform the life chances of ehildren and their communities, Our schools serve areas with high bevels of students eligible for free schaal
rieals and with special educational peeds and disabilities.

Dioans was bullt argund the high-performing Desons Oty Academy, which was one of the first City Technology Colleges which were the
earhy bluepring for the academy programame. A third of our schools were brand new start-ups undar the frea schoal programme, whils
the other two-thirds are temarounds adopted from falllng predecessors in speclal maaswres,

Ohver the past Frve years, ur trust has more than doubled In size, growing to serve almast 14,000 students, suppadted by around 1,800
staff, and with a budget of over E100m. Wi cater for children aged 3-19 in 17 schools in the inner-city ecmmunities of Leeds, Bradford,
Manchester and Liverpoal. We bead 11 secondary scademies {inc. Newall Green], thres primarnias, twa all-through academies, and a sixth
form academy. Six of our academies are judged Outstanding; five are judged Good (four of which were sponsored fram special
miEAsures); one was recently judged Inadequate [despite a compelling formal complaint); and a further five academies are awaiting their
fiest inspection under Dixons’ leadership.

Orear the next three years, Dixons plans again to grow significantly, building our hubs along the MEZ in Leeds, Lverpoal and Manchester,
Dur latest froe school, Dikons Mewall Green In Wythanshawe, oponed September 2023, and we werne successful In sur wave 15 bid 1o
open two further froe schools in Manchester in 2-4 years” time, We contimes to work with the DIE reglons group to explore ather
oppartunities on both shdes of the Pennines.

Why do we exist?

(hur trust's misslen b5 to challenge educational and social disadvantage in the Morth, All of our schaals serve areas of deprivation and
commaunities with higher kevels of free school meals than the national average. By the age of 18, wo want every student to hawe the
choice of university or a high-quality apprenticeship,

Howr do wie behave?

Wiz are a vahses-driven organtsation, and our schools are cormmunities with a strong sense of moral purpose. W axpaect staff and
students to work hard: to be determined to get things done. We expect everyona to be good: to behave with integrity and honesty at all
tlmes. And e expect all of owr peopie to be nice; to show humility, to be falr, and to be a posithee team playar.

What da we dao?

We establish high-performing non-faith academies which maximise attainment, valwe diversity, develop character and bulld cultural
capital. We are ambitious and make no excuses based on our students’ backgrounds, Al students are expected to make outstanding
progress that will enable them to succeed in further or higher edwecation and in the world of work, W spend more on teaching than
pther trusts and cut cost elsewhere. The extended school week offers studenits mare tirse in the classroom, as well a5 mone oppartunities.
to broaden thedr harizons and engage in a wider range of co-curricular expariences. We see diversity as a strength and want all students
to value, and to learm from, the diversity arcund tham.,

How will we succeed?

Thee: first of our strategic anchors is acadermic rigour because we believe that children need powerful knowledge to understand and
interpret the world: without It they remain dependent upon those who have it. Powerful knowledge & cognitively superior to that
needed for daily life, transcending and Wberating students from their daily experience, Ouwr curriculum i designed to be remembered,
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and is bed by, collaborsted on, and delivered by high-gquality subject specialists. it s owned by students from all faiths and backgrounds
and ks the entitlernent of all; we resist parental opg-outs.

Owr operational model is one of aligned autonodry acrods our academies. We are aligned because we all share the same mission and
values: because we want all Dixgas studants and staff to bepefit from owr best collective practice; because we all banafit from the
collective Dixons resources, brand and reputation; because central services become simpler to deliver and mone efficlent; and becausa
growth can be better controdled, supported and managed. We value autonomy becausa leadership and personal accountability are
founded on ownership and seff-direction; bacause confoermity kills innowvation and drives away the best staff; and because standardisation
falts to respond to changing needs and fails to adapt to a changing environment. Therefore, we seek to find the optimal balance between
condistency acrogs our academies and seif-determination by thelr leaders,

Talent 1s the third of our strategic anchors and ane dreand of our strategic plan, Thene is 8 presing business nesd 10 endure that our
people-brand is as attractive a3 our educational brand. Our sector particularly has an isiue of recruitment and retention and, although
we fare better than many other trusts, it i vital that we recognise that we must recruit, retain and motivate talent in arder o continue
to challenge educational and social disadvantage.

Educational performance

As we navigate the lingering effects of the COVID pandemic, it's impartant to recognise that while exams and grading might have returned
13 samething more ‘nosmal’, schooling isell is far from it. Emerging signals in national results dats suggest stark regional difference as
well a5 8 widening of the disadvantage gap. Couple this with the ongoing attendance challenges that we are facing and it"s not hard to
sap that, In very real terma, this is not 2019,

Ciur trust comprises schoods at very different stages of development = some are eardy on 3 five-year school Imprevament jowrney = and
we acknowledgs those differences = we take on the schoods who need ws the most and we have done 50 in the mast challanging moment
socially, economically and professionally,

Despite this, overall, 2022/23 was a successful year for our trust, and our results for mast schools were broadly in line with 2019 levels.
Honwever, we recoghise that to schieve ouw mission we need to evercome our contextual challenges and deliver evan better results next

Year.
Primary phase

= Improsed K51 attalnment at nearly all schools {compared to 2032), The galy saception belng at Chapeltown, parthy dua to staffing
changes and lower student starting paints.

e At K52, Marchbank performed beter than in 2009 and in Ene with national for reading, writing and maths (RWM) combined;
Manningham performed in line with pre-pandemic bevels, but bebow national. Music did not perform as strongly as in 2009 but did
Irmprove on 2023 [by 8%) and In line with national for RWM combined. Due to the pandemic, Allerton’s first results were last year, so
the school doesn’t yet have a reliable 3-year tread in performance,

= [usadvantaged K52 students at Music and Marchbank performed better than in 2022, and Marchbank's disadvantaged studants
performed better than in 2019 by 26% (RWM combined], Howewer, our owerall reswlts for disadvantaged students were balow
national, 50 we recagnise there is more work to ba done.

Sepandary phase

= At K54, five of owr sevan schools that have been with us for mose than thres years increased (or achieved within 1% of) the percentage
of students achleving grade 5 or above In English and maths (Basics) when compared to 2019, Two of the three schools that have been
with ws for more than ona, but less than thres years, improved on 2019, Siedlarly, for the percentage of students achisving grade 5 or
abowa Inthe EBacc, four out of seven and two out of three improved on 2019,

* Disadvantaged K54 stedents performed extremely well at most schoos: seven out of ten schogls had a higher percentage of
disadvantaged students schieve Basics at 5+ compared to 201%; of the other theee schools, one was within 2% of 2019, and one was
abave the national figure for 2013,

Post-16

& At Post-16, colleges parformed in line with national at A%-C, but below national at A%-B. Given the national pictune, differential imgact
of COVID and that we allow studants to study academic courses with comparatively lower GCSE grades, it's acceptable that owr A*-C
is In line with national, but the proportion of eur students schieving higher grades iz well below what we would normally expect.

= Af Siuth Form, the progress and attalnment of students studying vocational courses significantly Improved (over a 10% Increase at
Bistinction [ Distinction® grades) on 2022, Given the kower outcomes nationally, this Is an Impressive iImprovemant.

Dfsted

= Wiile we do not desipn owr ocodemies around extermal frameworks ar do things specifically for Ofsted, i i ohways welcame (o receive
independent. external endoesement aof our apevoach.
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= Three highly successful Ofsted Inspection outcomes: Cottingley (Inadequate to Good), Sieth Form (Dutstanding) and Manningham
{remains Good),

= An gxceptionally disappointing Ofsted outcome at Unity [Reguires improvement to Inadequate = despite a formal complaint):

o W fEved e conbeat &5 30 excuse, Hll.:l.“umﬂfttlr!d.itd:ﬂl'r. Uinity iz in the top 1% nationally for the proportion of childnen
who have been supported by FSM their whols Bees. Poverty in this community i inter-generational — COVID knows poverty, 5o
to thie cost-of-living erisis

o Having taken Linity on part-way through an acadernsc year that was followed by pandemic disruption in each subsequent year,
last academic year was the first full Divons year, and the progress i tan gk

o Currently, Unity continues to fall short of gur own standards, but we can see the progress and wheare improvement i needed.
We are unequivocal that Linity is a significantly better school than before it jodned our trust

o Unity is responding to the end paints of the utnbearable pressures placed upon our community; we will retum to pre-pandemic
narma but the school, eritical to social recovery, needs to be givon time to do so

® [n the last two pears, we have taken on fowr Inadeguate schools seross Liverpool and Manchester; as our internal benchmarking shows,
and as confirmed by esternal partners, they heve all increasingly demonstrated marked imgrovements in culture, ewfriculum and
teaching since poining our trust,

Contre for Growth

# The Centre for Growth it now firmly positioned at the centre of our trust to support the developmant of all collsagues and our
academies,

= |n terms of enhanced developrment activity, 1,000 colleagues have attended training from 40 different programmes internally, in
addition to numerous conferences and support bayond Dixons fram our NPO Consortium, Behaviour Hub and OpenSource offers,

# The Centre for Growth now manages over 30 cross cutting teams, led by trust APs and chamiplons to develop our trust backbone and
respond bo bath general and localised need,

= Owr EDBI work has focussed on our principals and senior leaders to date, as a foundation for the next phase of our ED&| strategy.
Training has received exceptional feedback and has the potential to be transfarmathve at indhdidueal and trise-level with roll-out aver
the next three years,

= All our trainegs passed thelr PGCE courses, and the majority are staying with us as ECTs this year. We are delighted to have recruited
25 trafnees to train to teach with Diwons 202324, bucking the national trend, and comprised of & moe diverse and representative
prafile.

= Our new approach to professional growth is increasingly visible and felt as having pasitive impact on relationships and belonging from
assaciate staff. It is a priority for 2023/24 to increase consistency and use coaching to Improve performance.

= Dur EEF Research Schood has concluded six high profile partnerships with Delta, Wakefield LA, Barnsbey LA, Kirklees LA, BDAT and
Bradford Q4. Sevaral of these have been independently evaluated with positive cutcomes fior school knowledge and capacity in the
region. These nvolved tralning over $00 teachers and leaders from over 200 schoals,

Dixons OpenSource (05, O5+)

= As regested by the ME, we are supporting five trusts through a combination of the trust and schoal improvement offer and the
priority education mvestment aress grant Tocuiad on English, maths and attendance: 2 in Greater Manchester, I in South Yorkshire
and one in Bradiord,

* Behaviowr Hubs: 3 schools moved from Reguires Improvernent to Good (with same model as 05+ Onsite).
# 100% of 0%+ partiers (9 active] would recommend OS5+ to colleagues.
* IrnpactEd partresship curently in design to enable impact reparting looking forward, and to complate a retraspective impact report.

Golng concern

After making appropriate enguiries, cur trust board has & reasonable expectation that our trust has adequate resources 1o continwe n
cperational existencs for the foresesable future, For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern bagis in preparing the financial
staternents. Further details regarding the adoption of the going cancem basis can be found In the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

The responsibility for the monitoring and support of open academies lies with the Education and Skifls Funding Agency [ESFA], which
handles the funding for all 4-19 education,

Most afl our trust’s income is abtained from the ESFA and the Local Education Authority in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which
iz restricted a3 defined by its Memorandum and Articles of Association. The grants received from the ESFA and Local Education Authority

Dhemioty A ey Tt
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during the year ended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statemant of Financial
Activities,

Owr trust alio recehes prants for fixed assets from the Department for Education, |In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recammiended Practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (S08P 2019), such grants are showwn in the Statement of Financial
Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance i reduced by annual depreciation eharges
aver the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

Incoming resources (escluding Restricted Fixed Asset Funding) amounted ta E102.7 million and were sufficient to cover all outgaings to
produce an operating in year surplus of £0.819 million [before FR3102 pension costs).

Dwiring the year, Divons Croxteth Academy (formerdy De La Salle Acaderrry Trust] was a single acadery trust and transferred to our trust
on 1 November 2022, At the date of transfer in, the operations, assets and Habilities were transferred to our trust at Enil condidesation.
The transfer has been accounted for as 3 combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities transferred were valsed at
their historic cost and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding netl amounl recognised as
& net {igain/loss) In the Staterment of Financial Activities as Donations = transfer from single academy trust.

Az we continue to recover from the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and the severs disruptions & caused to studonts, our trust continees
to recelve funding froem the DEEJESFA to support students recover and catch up on last kearming. Durlng the year, our trust recelved
additional COVID-19 related granis totalling £1.385 million to support pupils whose education has been impacted by COVID-19 and
disadvantaged students. This funding was fully expended during the year.

During the wear, our trust recehed E310K Trust Capacity fund to suppost the growth and development of our trust that veas fully expended
at the year-end, As our trust continees to grow in size, we received £270k pre-opening grant Tor Dixons Newall Green Acadenny which
apened on the 1 September 2023, The funding was used to cover anything the academy needed up to the paint of opening and the funds
were fully expended in the year,

The restricted genaral fund as reported in note 19 excluding pension llabllity is £6.453 milllon and the unrestricted fund balance Is £1.418
malllizn a5 at 31 August 2023 giving an actusl reswsrve balapee of E7.871 millian.

The net book value of tanglble and Intangible fieed assets at 31 August 2023 was £139 million [2022: £134 milllon). Movements in
tangible fioed assets arg shown In note 14 to the accounts. The Increase is due to the transfer of Disons Crocteth Acadermy assets valued
at histaric costs, The restricted flved asset fund is then reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the asets
concerned, The assets were usad exclushvely for providing education and associated support senvices 1o acaderny students.

The deficit in LGPS pension funds |5 recognited on the balance sheet in accardance with the provisions of FRE102, The tatal deficit in the
schame asat 31 August 2023 was EATIk [ 2022 El-ll-lﬂ-mf. This decrease in pengion Eabdlity has bean largely drven by changes infinancial
assumptions, which resulted in 8 gain of £4,864m after restricting the surplus recognised on tha balance sheet to nil. Market derived (9|
inflaticn and salary increase rate has reduced by 0.10% fram the prior year thus resulting in lower lability, The corporate bond yield
{upon which the discownt rate s derived) bas risen over the period by 1.0%. This has served to reduce the employer’s obligations and
bed to tha gakn on the balance sheet, Howewver, we inherited £788k pension Nability from Dikons Croxteth Academy that joined our truss
during this financial year, The employment and finance cost totalled £1,111k (2022: £5,155k). Movements in the persion fund are
reported in note 39 of the Financial Statements. The pensicn liability s underwritten by the Government if settlement was ever required,

The balance sheet discloses cash and bank balances of E12.781 million [2022; £10.367 million). The increase in cash balance is because
of the additional grants received that were not fully expended in the vear ended 31 August 2023, surpluses made by the academies and
the transfer of Divons Craxteth bank account balance of £743k,

Reserves and investment policy

Our trustess review the reserve bevels of our trest annually, This review ancompasses the nature of Income and expenditure streams,
the meed to match income with commitments and the nature of reserees. Our trustees have dotermined that the appropriate level of
reserves, sncluding restricted fed asset funding, should be equivadent to at beast 5% of total turnover, The reason fior this 5 to provide
suffichent working capltal 1o cover dedays between spending and recelpt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected
emergencies such as urgent maintenance. Ouwr trustees have taken the decision to centralise all reserves in respect of our trust,

Ag at 31 August 1023, the total reserves of eur trust were £7.871m (2023: £7.052m]) of which the restrcted general funds were £6.453m
(2022: £5.681m). The fund ratio as & % of total income stand at 7.7% 8% at 31 August 2023, higher than the minimuarm limit of 5% 6% per
the reserve policy but this includes the ringfenced income to be spent in 23/24.

Our trust’s kel of free reserves (total funds less the amount held in fed assets and general restricted funds), as at 31 August 2023,
were £1.418 million {2022: £1.371 milion], The increase of the unrestricted funds is due to recognising the net surplus funds transfenad
from Dixans Crouteth Acadermy as unrestricted, The operating In-year surplus for our trust was at £0.81%9m (2022: £0.85%m) equating to
1% of toral income.

Owr trustess’ Investment powers are poverned by the Memorandum and Articles of Association and allow the charity's funds to be
invasted in a wida range of Investment viehicles without restriction. Our trustees have sppegved the nvestment of surplus cash Inte
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Flagstone, a bank deposit platform across 8 number of banks with varying terms non greater than twehee months. This is managed
through closely monitared cashflow forecasting and working capital analysis,

Details of the funds hald by our trust ane set out innotes 19 and 20 of the sttached financial Matements.

Principle risks and uncertainties

Thiz system of risk management ks based on an on-golng process designed to identify and prioritise the risks which effect the wncertalnty
of achleving gur trust's objectives and to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and their Empact should they be realised.
The process also considers how risks ane managed and whethar they are deemed efficlent, effecthve and economic.

Thi= risk registeris reviewad by the exetutive team prior toeach audit and risk committes and trust board meeting. As part of the process
of the risk register remaining agile, the review looks at each risk and determines whether the risk has become an issue, ISswes are then
moved to the Bsues log which is also reported to the trustees, The review of the risk register also includes a wider lens look at the
current issues facing the education sector to identify the emenging risks.

The board of trustees will set their appetite and tolerance for each risk category, and this will be used w determine the target risk. To
provhde assurance to the board of trustees, the Head of Governance will facilitate regular discussions with each risk cwner to determine
whether mitigations are reducing the Beellhood and impact of the risk and whether the mitigations are on track to bring the risk to the
target level. The overview of the discussions is presented to the awedit and risk commities and the board of trustees in the next cpcla,

Our trustess have assessed the major risks to which our trust i exposed, In particular to thase relating to teaching, provision of facilities
and other operational areas of our trust, and our finances. Our trustees have adopted palicies and procedunes 1o mitigate these risks for
the Executive team to implement and report 10 the Awdit and Risk committes for any non-compliance. The key risks fall inte six
categarias:

Strategle

Growth is a priority for our trust, but as we grow, there Is a risk that trust leadership capacity Is overstretched and lacks Imgact in new
schools and/or declining performance in existing ones. To mitigate this risk, our trust has established strong leadership in Uverpool and
Manchasber, approved imestmeant in shaned senvices staffing and renewed the focus on change management and professional growth.
There i alsa the sk that cur trust’s growth pipelne stalls and cur trust loses talent who are seeking personal growth o promation
elsewhere, Tomitigate this, a wide variety of talent is invobeed in the growth project, our brust 15 seeking White Paper oppartunities and
has been successful in two free school application both in Manchester, o secondary and & sixth form,

People

Our brust's success s very much dependent on recruiting, developéng and retaining the wery best people in ewery position in our schools
and central services. One of the spedfic risks is the fallure to recrult and promote an inclusive and representative warkforce. This can
lead to a lack of diverse role models leaving a talent pool untapped. To mitigate the risk, our trust has developed an equality, diversity
and inclusion strategy and has relled out training for all staff across owr trust. 5%aff retention is another key risk due to many factors
including change fatigue, cost of living, lifestyle chaices. Thess risks could have a significant impact an teaching gquality, govemance, and
risk of fallure to comply with ESFA and DIE required standards. Ouwr trust has implemented & people strategy to address the identified
risks with a varled programme of first-class regular tralning and a wide ramge of opportsnities for greater carses develogmant. In
addition, our trust s working with a number of coaches, there is 3 pew employee benefits affer, and hybrid working s suppamed,

Safeguarding

The safiety of students and staff is of paramount importance to our trust, The risis of failune to protect and or safeguard the students
and staff could have a detrimental Impact on the reputation of our trust, Therefors, our trust places the highest impertance on the
safety and wellbeing of students and staff within gur schools and central team. Our trust has in place robust safeguarding and child
protection palicies and protedunes o support schools in enswring that students are safe and feel supported, and everyong working in
our brust is trained and knows when and how 1o ralse any concerns that they may hawe abouf safeguarding.  Implementation and
effectiveness of these policies, which confonm te DIE guidance, are monitored regularty. Dur trust has in each of our schools a desigrated
safeguarding lead {(D5L) who ensures consistent best practice In safeguarding and child protection.

Finance and operations

The education sector comtinwes to face uncertainty over the cost of anergy and potential unfunded salary increases, Our trust will draw
upan its reserve balance when required to fund these uncertainties as they arise, Ourtnest has in place procurement processes to ensure
valua for money. Capital programmes may be delayed which could impact on learning. There Is early focus and actlon on CLFP, financial
modelling and lobtying of Government for additienal funding. Squesses In academy budgets can result bn staffing cuts and other
comipromises to educaticnal quality, In the long term, ouwr trust has in place strong financial planning and a budget maximisation strategy
to ensure that educational neods are met. Thore Is also a risk of a fall in roll in some of our trust’s catchment areas dus to a falling birth
rate. This could lead to msuffickent funding and hamper school Improvemant. Our trust has improved the local reputation of those
schoals affected and student recruitment i5 in ling with other local schools that could attract students. There is a risk of cyber-attack that
could cause significant disruption including - low of data, expense, disabled network, and inoperable systems, The Trust has a Cyber
atratepy which covers updsting firewalls snd continual server patching which all support the security of the T syitems.

Chimsres Acaderrari Tiunl
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Estate

Managing our school astate effectively will ensure we have a safa, healthy and sustainable school envirgnment. There i2 a risk that our
trust fadls to meet all the bullding regulations and health and safety at work act. Our trust has put in place estate managemant strategy
and plan toe ensure our estates ane safe and complaint with regulations, External service comtracts are In plage whene it is necessary to
utilise competent, approved contractors to underake work where it would not be viable to Wiilse cur own staff. Cur trust has several
contracts in place which relate to Legionelia, Fire Management, Gas, Electricity and Lifting Equipment. Al remedial repairs idantified
through extarmal service contracts have besn recehved and have besn prioritised, cosed and sctioned throughaut the year,

Education

COVID-1% has had a slgnificant Impact and severe disruption on learning and there s a risk of fallure to recover post-0OVID causing a
decline In culture and loss of learning which could lead to poor owtoomas, Ouir trust has factored (n additicnal capacity In its Spear
growth plan for culture, safeguarding and SEND. Thare Is a risk that the turnarcund schooks may be vulnerable if inspected because of
lost time due to COVID-19. Our trust’s we of Its academy transformation model to frame support can mitigate the risk and ensure
continuous Imgravement. Thane [s the risk of exam results falling balow expectation within an acadermy. This could cause the lods of
stakaholder confidence in the quality of education provided. Our trust has In place experienced and highly effective senior laaders,
middia management and support staff to drive high standards in all our schools and ensure systems and processes are well ambedded
BCrOSE our brust.

Fundraising

Owir trust does not engage in raising funds derectly from the general public and does not wse a professional fundralser or consider
fundraising activity to be significant. Our trust will continue to maonitor s sources of income and, should it start to ganerabe significant
funds from fundralsing activities, will inform the fundrabsing regulator and take all necessary measures fo ensure it complios with
guldance sswad,

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

UK greenhause gas ermisslons and energy use data for the perlod 1 September 2022 to 31 2022/23 202122
August 2023

Energy consumption used to cakoulate emissions [KWh) 16,116,511 17,628,146
Seope 1 emivsions n metrc tonnes 002

Gas consumgption 1,650.52 1,944.82
Ownied transport = minl-buses .10 122
Tatal scope 1 1E57.62 1,952.04

Scope 2 emisshons In metrc tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity 143135 1,331.13
Seope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee-crwned vehiclas 22.96 14.88
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes 00Ze 3.121.93 3,298.05
Irtensity ratio

Tonnes COXe per pupll 0.2z 0.25

Qualification and reporting methodolagy

We have followed the 1A% HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used GHG Reporting Protocal -
Corporate Standard and have used the 2043 UK Govemnment's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chasen intensity measurement ratio ks tolal gross emissions in metrlc tonnes 002e per tudent, the recommendad ratio for the
sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficlency

We have procured the support of an enargy consultant and are lopking at all avenyes for reducing our energy conswmption and
Improving cur energy efficlency. 'We hawe recelved funding from the DFE and are Investing £644k to install energy efficlent lights
across our academies, This will reduce consumption and cost of energy. Wa have Increased video conferencing technology for staff
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meetings to reduce the need for travel between sites. We are also making sure staff switch off all electrical appfances, computers,
laptops atc, when not in use, We are constantly looking at ways to reduce our carbon foptpring.

Plans for future periods

W focus axtludively on aress of socisl and educational disadvantage, either by sponioring turnaround sthools 1o addeess educational
failure, or by opening new fres schools to mest growing dermand.

Oher trust abms to achleve tha highest educaticnal ouftcomes far all our stisdents as well as providing professional growth opgounities
far our staff sa that all gur schools can contimes to grow and become self-supporting.

We will continue to bulld upon the educational success and financial stability of our schoals through cur three strategic anchors:
paloritising academic rigour, ensuring aligned autangemy, and putting cur people first.

Each of our schools |s at its own pont an the journey of acadermy trandormation and all work with excellence, resolve and clarity. Par
of that clarity comes from our commitment to sirmpBoty — we knaw our foous,

We have only four strands to our trust's 2-5 year plan:
= To butld greater structural, educational, financlal and tadent resience to ensure consistently high standards across our trust,
= To expand our hubs i the Leeds, Manchester and Lverpood city regions,

# To make owr Centre for Growth the go-to place for gur trust and the sector-lead for rigarous implementation, crafting school cultura,
and equality, diversity and Inclusion,

# And to provide education bo 20,000 students acrass the Marth,

in order to achiewe our 2-5 year plan, we continue te work through a roster of big moves (breakout opportunities that are hard to
reverse’| as part of our rolling strategic plan,

Our current big moves:

o Grow our senge of belonging through coaching for professional growth
= Finish our IT strategy

= Make academy transformation mane programmatic

® Grow shared sendces 1o deliver service excellance

® SEND

Dimons Cromteth joined cur trust early last scadermic year, and we were successful in ow bid to open two further free schools in
Manchester. Wi continue to wark chosely with the DFE regions group to explore further opportunities as part of our growth strategy.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others and agency arrangements

Owir trust receives 16-19 bursary payments from the Education and 5&ills Funding Agency. Our trust does not recognise this ncome as
its own Income and pays out all monles recedved for Its primary purposa to the relevant parties, Other than this agency arrangemant,
our trust does not act a3 a custodian trustee on behalf of others,

Pension reserve
The presence of a pension surplus or deficit does not constitute an immedate realisable asset or [ability and does not mean the
eguivalent amaunt s already committed or no longer avallable.

The presence of & persion suplus of deficit will genedally resolt in a cah flow effect for our thudt in the forem of & decreass of increass
in the employer’s peasion contributions over a pericd of years. Our trust is confident that it can meet the required pension contributions
from progected future ncome without a significant impact on its planned level of activity.

The risk surrounding cur trust's pension liability has been taken into consideration when preparing the annual budgets and, therefore,
our trust's resenves requirement will continue to be calodated without setting aside a designated reserve to cover the pansion lability,
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Disclosure of information to auditors
Each af the persond who are trustees at the time when this trudtees” report is appraved has confinmed that:
# a5 far o4 the rustess are aware, there i na relesant audit information af which the charitable company’s auditars are wnawi e

= trustess have taken all the steps that ought tohave been taken as a trustes in order to be made aware of any refsant aud Information
and to establish that the charitable compamy’s auditors are aware of that information,

This repoet, Incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of our trust board, as the company directors, on 12 December 2023,

signed on k5 :

Mike Blackburn OBE
Chair, Trust Board
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scope of responsibility

As trustess, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Dikons Academies Trust has an effective and appropriate
systerm of contred, financial and othersise, However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide only reasanable and not absslute assurance sgainst material misstatement or kass.

A trustees, we have reviewed and laken account of the gusdance in DIE's Governance Handbook and competency Tramework for
BOVErAnce,

Chur trust board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the chief executive officor, as accounting officer, for ensuring financial
controfs conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial managemant and in accordance with the requirements
and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Dixons Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
They are also respomsible for reporting to our trust board any materlal weaknesses or breakdowns in intesnal control

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the trustess’ report and in the staterment of governors'
responsibilities. The Trust Board has formally rmet six times during the year.

The finance and audit and risk comméttess, which meet at least three times per year, are sub-committees of our trust board, Their
purposa 5 to assist gur trust board In fulfilling its owersight responsibilities with regard to the managemant of pur trust. They do this
through the review of financlal projections, management accounts and balance sheet reconclllations and risk register 1o make
recommandations to the trust beard, In addition, they review the financlal statements and accounting policies, retehe and review the
internal and external auditors report and ensure that recommendations are actioned, and risk managed.

Attendance during the year 8t mestings of owr trust board, linance committes and audit and risk committes was as follows:

Narme Trust Board Audit and Risk Finarmce Commities
Commities

23

Hulyy Bhatti OBE

Jahn Bowers MBE

David Clayton (resigned 31 Decembar 2022)
Bryan Collins [resigned 31 August 2023)

Brent Fitzpatrick MBE (Chair, Finaroe Commitfea)
I Lynch

Sarah Young (resigned 30 September 2023)

Mike Blackburn OBE

Kuldip Mijjar

HelEn Tharntan

Jarmes Wilkinson - - 55
Susan Richardson (resigned 30 Septomber 2022) .
John Holreyd d . 55
Julia Lea . = 45

R
2

&S |F|

g

Conflict of interest

Trustees complete a declarations of interest form annually In September. The Information from this form |5 coflated into a Register of
interests document which is then uploaded to the trust website,

At every meeting of the trust board and its delegated committees, thera i a standing agenda iterm where trustesd are given the
oppartunity to declane thair interasts in any matters pertaining to the agenda. Our trust ensures that trustees follow all rules in the
compary's governing document about conflict of interest and we review our palicies regularly and discuss it with new trustees,
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Dixons Academies Trust
Governance Statement for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Governance reviews

As partof the wider improsements to governance, BDO, the internal awditor, carmied out & governance réview in May 2023, The review
consisted of interviews with coBeaguas from all layers of governance, documentation from previous years, plus the documentation far
the proposed new local governance structure, schame of delegation and governance suite of documents,

The review was broad and looked st bullding and strengthening governance and roles and responsibiBtias and local academy
board.  The findings from the report include:

= alignment to the govermance handboeak to make sure there & appropelate coverage versus what the handbook promoted.

+ pbservations of interviews and sunseys, eg training and induction, communication of information at each kevel and accountability at
each level,

« making sure that there is no duplication or ambsguity about reles and responsibility In the schems of delegation and terms of
reference,

= gelays in producing the minutes by the cutsourced clerking service and haw to ensure they ane held to account.
The trustess have taken the findings on board and have put actions in place to address the above paints,

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the chief executive officer has responsibility for ensuring that our trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider socletal utcomes, as well as
estates safety and management, achieved in retwin for the taxpayer resources received,

The sccounting officer considers how our trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year
and reports to aur trust board whers valus for money can be improved, incliding the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework
where appropriate. The Accounting Officer of our trust has continwed to deltver improved vahee for money during the vear by further
developing procurement Initiathwes, and Improving centralisation of support functions, whers approgriate.

Financial governance and oversight

The Trust benefits from the provision of an independent internal audit service provided by BDO, BDO reports directly to the Audit and
Risk Committes on all systems and procedures together with other areas identified in the 3-year IMternal Audit Programme eg.
Governanis, Health and Safety, Safeguarding, Risk Managamant et

Cur trust receives support throughaut the yesr from its external auditors on compliance and accounting practices.

The Finance Committes recetves monthly management accownts and balance sheet reports, including cashfiow statements and
working capital analysls, togather with a detalled analysis of all significant vasiances. Compliance with the Schéme of Delegation 15 alio
mgmitored by the Finance and Audit and Risk Committees, which reviews the Scheme annually,

Our trust board approves the budget each year bearing In mind the reguirement to achieve a balanced budget and 1o ensure that aur
Lrust remaing & "gaing concern”, Our trust board also recaives and approves the trustees’ annual report and accounts together with
extermal auditer's management letter.

Better purchasing = ensuring value for money

Contracts and services are regularly appraised and renegotisted when apgropriate to ensune value for money. Our trust takes
advantage of consortia, when appropriate, to obtaln economies of scale. During COVID-19, our trust followed the guidance given in
PPN D2/20 and PPN D4/20, Qur trust |5 working with Tenet Education Services wha has developed a thres-year procurerment plan and
& register of contracts to support batter purchasing across our trust and ensuring we are compliant with the public contract regulations
2015, During the year Tenet has worked closely with various departments within our trust on several tenders resulting in 22 new
contracts being awarded, with an overall contract value of £5,437,297, The tenders were carried out dise o sxisting contracts coming
1 an end and 1o support our trust with delivering better valis for money to our trust as well a3 to ensure the Trust remains comglEsm
with regulations. The new contracts will deliver savings to our trust.

There are 20 planned procurement profects in place already for the next 12-month pericd with a current contract value of £3,000,000.
Tanet will continee to work with the Trust making sure the most appropriate prosurement route i recommended to help safeguard
best value whilst ensuring compliance with Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the Trusts Financlal Begulations,
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Dixons Academies Trust
Governance Statement for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Reviewing controls and managing risk

Manthly budget monitoring reports ane prepared for revlew by cur trust’s head of finance and academy Principals; appropriate action
it taken bo sddreds any varances that may have an impact on the budget out-turn, Our trust ensures that all sunplus cash balances ars
invested in interedt bearing sccounts to madmise Interast carning potential, Investment Institutions are selected carefully to provida
the rast acceptable batance of return and risk,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of nternal controd |s designed to rmanags risk to 8 reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure 9 achieve
palicies, alms and objectives; It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal contred |s based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achéevement of our trust's palicies,
alms and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively, and economically, Our trust’s system of internal control has baen in place for the year ended 31 August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

Our trust board has reviewed the key risks to which owr trest |5 exposed together with the operating, financlal and compliance controls
that hiave besn implemented to mitigate those rsks, Our trust board s of the view that thare i 2 formal ongolng process for identifiying,
evaluating, and managing our Wrust's significant rigks that has been in place for the year ending 31 August 2023 and up ta the date of
approval of the annual report and finencial statements. This process |5 regulady reviewed by our trust's audit and risk commiéttes and
ouar trusst board,

The risk and control framework

Ower trust’s system of Internal financial control & based on a framework of regular management information and adoministrative
procedures including the segregathon of duties and a system of delegation and accountabslity. In particular, it Includes:

= pomprahenstve budgeting and menltoring systems, with an annual budget and periodic financial reports, which are reviewed and
agread by our trust board

= regular revhews by the Finanoe Commilttes of reparts which indicate financial performance aganst the budgey/forecasts and of major
purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes In line with the Schame of Delegation

= setting targets to maasens financlal and other performance

& clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase of capital invedtment) guidelines
¢ delegation of authority and segregation of duties

Identification and management of risks

The risk and contral framewark

Our trust board has consldered the need for a specific Internal Audit function and has appointed BOO after a susoessful tender process
te carry out inteérnal scruting and the nature of work that they have been engaped to perform. The Internal Audit function repoets
directly to the Awdit and Risk Committes,

The internal auditor's rale includes giving advice on financlal and other matters and performing a range of checks on our trust’s financial
and other $yiterms. In particular, the checks carried out In the current peried Includad;

= Capital expenditure [capex)

= [Follow up of previous finance, estates and IT audits,

* Hizk management advisony

¢ Gowemance advisary

* Mew academies anboarding and due diligence advisary

On a regular basis, the internal auditor repans to our trust board, through the audit and risk committes on the aperation of the systems
of control and on the discharge of our trust board™s financial responsibilities. On an annual basis the awditor prepares a summary report
to the committes outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the commilttes consider actions
and assess Year on year progress.
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Dixons Academies Trust
Governance Statement for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the chief executive officer has responsibility for revigwing the effectivensss of the system of internal contrel,
During the year in question, the review has been informed by

s the work of the internal Auditor
s the work of the External Auditor
e the financial management and governance self-assesement prooess

e the work of the executive directors within our trust who have responsibility for the development and malntenance of the internal
contred framework,

Bazad on the internal auditor's annual statement of assurance, the capex process exarmined highlights areas of good practice and that
the S-pear plan Is discussed on a periodic basls and approvals ware In line with the scheme of delegation.

Based on the samphe testing, capex requests in all 10 Instances, appravals were in line with the schame of delegation and manthly
capex recanciliations are performed and these are reported to the finance committes bl-monthly., The financial and internal controd
frameworks and governance arrangements wene operating with sufficlent effectiveness to provide substantial assurance ower the
design and substaniial assurance over the operational effectiveness of the controls in place.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of tha result of their review of the systerm of internal control by the Finance
and Audit and Risk Committee, and as detalled above and the ensuring continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approvad the membirs of aur trust Boand on 12 Decambier 2023 and sag its behalf by:

Mike Blackburn OBE Luke Sparkes

Chalr, Trust Board Chief Executive Officer
Aecounting Officer
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Dixons Academies Trust
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

As Accounting Officer of Diboons Academies Trust, | have considenad my responsibdlity to notify the acadery trust board and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency [ESFA] of material iregularity, iImpropriety and non-comgliance with terms and conditions of
funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement beteeen the academny trust and the Secretary of
State for Education. As part of my consideration, | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2022
including responsibilities for estates safety and management,

I confinm that | and the academry trust board are able to Identify any material imegular or improper use of all funds by the academy
trust, or materal non-compllance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trusts funding agreement and the
Acagamias Trust Handbook 2022,

i confirm that no instances of material irregularity, improgriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any
instances tified after the date of this staternent, these will be notified to the acadermy trust beard and ESFA,

L >

Luks Sparkes
Accounting Dfficer

12 Decernber 2023
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Dixons Academies Trust
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

O trustees {who are also the directors of the charitable compary for the purpases of comparry law) are responsible for preparing the
trustees’ report and the fnanctal statements in accordance with the Annusl Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice] and applicable law
and regulations,

Campary [aw reguires our trustess to prapare financlal statements for each financial year, Under company Liw, our IROsbess must not
approve the financlal statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and falr view of the state of affairs of the charitable
cornpany and of its Incoming rescurces and appication of resources, Including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing
these financial satermants, our trustees amne requined to:

= selact suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently
= pbuerve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academses Accounts Direction 2023 to 2023
» make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

# state whether applicable UK Accounting Standands have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statemants

= prepare the financlal statements on the going concern basis unbess it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable comparry will
continue In business.

Our trustens ane responsibla for keeping adequate accounting records that ane sufficient to show and explain the charitable company’s
trangactions and dischose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enabls tham to
ersure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the presenticn and detection of fraud and other irmegularities.

Our trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls,
which conform with the reguirements both of propriety and of good financlal management, They are also responsible for ensuring
grants receivad from ESFASDIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

Chur trusteas are responsible for the malntenance and Integrity of the corparate and financial information Included on the charitable
company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ
from legistation in ather jurisdictions.

Apprened by aof the members of our trust board on 12 December 3033 and sigred on its behalf by

W

Mike Blackbiirm OBE
Chuair, Trust Board
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Dixons Academies Trust
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Dikons Academies

Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dixons Academies Trust {the ‘acadesry’) for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise
the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheat, the Staterment of cash flaws and the related notes, including & summary of
significant accounting policles. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparation i applicable law, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting Practice], including Financial Reparting Standard 102
"The Financlal Beporting Standard applicablde in the UK and Republic of ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Acoounts
Direction 2022 to 2023 Esued by the Edwucation and 5kills Funding Agency.

Ir o opinion the finandal statermsernts:

= give a true and falr view of the state of the Acadery's affairs 2% ar 31 Auvgust 2023 and of s incoming resources and application of
resources, inclieding Bs Incoms and eapenditure for the year then ended

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accaunting Practice

* have been prepared In sccordance with the reguiremeants of the Cosmpanbes Act 2006, the Charitkes SORP 2019 and tha Acadomies
Accounts Dirgction 2022 to 2023 lssued by the Education and Shills Funding Ageney

Basis for opinion

Wie conducted our awdit In accordance with international Standards on Auditing [UR) {154 [UR ]} and applicable law. Our responsibdities
wnder those standards ane further described in the Auditers’ responsibilithes far the audit of the financlal statemants section of our
repart. We are independent of the scaderry thst in sccordance with the sthical reguinements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the United Kingdam, including the Firancial Reporting Councils Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled aur other
ethical responsibilites in scoordance with these requiremants, We believe that the audit evidence wa have obtained is sufficent and
appragriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to golng concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees” use of the going contern basis of accownting in the
preparation of tha financlal staterments is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not Identified ary materisl uncertalnties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collecthely, may cast significant doubt on the acadermy trust’s ablity to continue as a golng concem for a period of at
least pwelve months from whan the financial statements are authorised for isswee,

Our responsibilithes and the responsibilities of the trustoes with respect to golng concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report,

Other information

Thi other information comprises the infeemation Included in the Annual repant other than the financial staternents and cur Auditors'
report thereon, The trustees are résponsible for the other information contained within the Annual report. Our epinion on the Ananclal
statements does ot oover the other information and, except o the axtent otherwise explicithy stated in gur report, we do not express
any form of assurance conchusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information 14 materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materally misstated, If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatemaents, we ang
reguired b determing whether this gives rise to 8 matertal misstaterment in the financlal statemants themsehes. I, based on the work
w have performed, we conclude that there is a raterial misstatement of this other informaticn, we are requined to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regand,

DOpinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
im our opinion, based on the work undartaken In the course of the audit:

# the information given in the trustees’ report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the financial statermnents
are prepared |s consistent with the financial statements

® the trustees’ report and the Strategic repart have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguiremants
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Dixons Academies Trust
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Dixons Academies
Trust

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In tha light of our knowledge and understanding of the acadermy trust and ity ervironment obiained in the course of the audit, we have
not bdentified materal misstatements in the trustees' report including the Strategic repodt.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Compandes Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, im ur opinlon:

* adequale sccounting records have not been kapt, or returns adeguate for owr audit have not been received from branches not visiced
by us, or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the sccounting recands and returns, or
= certain disclosures of trustess” remuneration specified by law are not made, or
= we have not recehved all the Information and explanations we requine for owr audit

Responsibilities of trustees

A5 wxplained mare fully In the stabtement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees [who are alse the directors of the academy trust for
the purposes of company law] are responsible for the preparation of the financlal statermants and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such Internal controd as the trustees detarmine ks necessary to enabla the preparation of financial statements
that are free from materisl misstaternant, whether dus to fraud or arror.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustess sre responsible for assesding the acadeny trust’s abllity to continue as a golng
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsing the going concern basls of accaunting unless the trustees
either intend to liguidate the academy trust of to cease operations, oF have no realistic alternative but to da so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cwr objectives are t0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
milsstatement, whether due to fracd or erron, and to Bsue an Auditers’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level af assurance but i not a guaranbee that an awdit conducted in accordance with 1545 [UK] will always detect 3 material
milsstatement when it eadsts. Mistatements can arse from fraud or error and are considered materal i, Individwlly o In the
sggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influgnce the economéc decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statemants,

Irregularities, including fraud, are Instances of non-complisnce with lws and regulations. We design procedures in ling with our
responsibilithes, cutlined above, to datect materlal misstatesments in respect of iegularities, Mcludng frawd. The extent to which our
procadures ane capable of detecting irregularites, including fraud is detaied belov:

Our approach to identibying and assessing the risks of material misstaternent in respect of imegularithes, induding fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

* we identified the kows and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with management, and from our
knowledge and experience of the sector

= we focused on specific laws and regulstions which we considered may have a direct material effect on the accounts or the operations
of the acadesmy trust, including the Charities Act 2011 and the guldance Issued by the ESFA

= wit assassid the extent of compllance with the laws and regulaticns identified above through making enguiries of management and
Inspecting correspondence with the regulators

¢ we jdentified ws and regulations were communicated within the audit team and the team remained alert to instances of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust's accounts to material misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how
fraud might ocewr, by:

# making enguiries of management a5 to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud

= cansidering the internal comtrols in place te mitigete risks of fraud and non-compiance with laws and regulations
To address the risk of fraud through managemeant bias and everride of controls, we:

= parformed analytical procedures to identify any unisual or unexpected relationships

& pested journal entries to kdentify wnusual transactions
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Dixons Academies Trust
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Dixons Academies

Trust

= assessed whether judgements and assumgtions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the accounting policies
were indicathee of potential bias

= inwestigated the rationale behind significant of unutusd tranisetions.

In response ta the risk of irregudarities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procadures which Included, but
wire pot lmited o

= agresing financial statement dischosures to undarldng supporting docurmentation
® reviewing correspondence with regulators and reading minutes of mestings of those charged with governance
= enguiring of managesment as to actueal and potential litigation and ciaims

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all Iregularities, including thate leading to a
material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compilance with regulation, This risk increases the more that compliance
with a law or regulation ks removed from the events and transactions reflected In the financial statements, a3 we will be bass likely to
become aware of Instances of non-compliance. The risk s also greatar regarding Irnegularitios occurring dus to fraud rather than enfor,
a3 fraud Invodvas Intertional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresantation,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemams is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website a8 veww frc.org. ukfauditorsesponsibifities. This description forms part of our Auditars' report.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the acadesy trust’s members, as 8 body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Dur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's membars those matters we are reguired to
state to them in an auditors' report and for o other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not sccept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and its membars, as.a body, for cur audit wark, for this repart, ¢ for the apinland
w have formed,

P~

Leshey Kendrew {Seniar statutory auditor)
far and on bahalf of

BHF LLP

Chartered Accountants

Mew Chartford Hause

Centurion Way

Cleackhaaton

BO19 308

ome: | December 2023
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Dixons Academies Trust
Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance report on Regularity to Dixons Academies Trust
and the Education & Skills Funding Agency for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

In #ccordance with the terms of cur engagement letter dated 18 October 2023 and further to the requisements of the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA] a5 Included In the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carmed out an engagement ta
obtain limited assurance atout whethar the expenditure disbursed and Income received by Dixons Academies Trust during the year 1
September 2022 10 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactions conform
1o the authorities which gavern them,

This report is made solely to Divons Acaderndes Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our wark has
bean undertaken so that we might state to Dixons Academies Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in & report and
far no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do nol sccept or adsums responibility to sryone other than Dixend
Academbes Trust and ESFA, for our woel, for this repart, o for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Dixons Academies Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requéramants of Dixons Academies Trust's funding agreemant with the Secretary of
State for Education dated 1 Docember 2016 and the Acadermy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income recedved is applied for the purposes Intended by Parllameant and the financial tranzactions conform
to the autharities which govern them,

Qur responsibilities for this engagement ane estabiished in the United Kingdom by ouwr profession’s ethical guidance and are 1o abtain
limdted assurance and report in socardance with owr engagement letter and the requirements of the Academbss Aceownts Direction
2022 to 2023, We report bo you whether anything has come (o our BUEMSn it cantying oul aur work which suggests that in all matesial
respects, expanditure disbursed and income recaived during the year 1 Septamber 2022 1o 31 August 2023 have not been applied to
purpases Intended by Parllament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement In accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accowntant of
Acaderrry Trusts Bsued by ESFA. We performaed a Bmilbed aswrance engagement as dafined In our angagamant letter.

The objective of a Bmited assurance engagement is to pedorm such procedures as to obtain infermation and explanations in arder to
provide us with sufficlent apprograte evidence to express B negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagemant is more Bmited In scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enabde
us to obtain asurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified In a reasonable assurance
engagement, Accordingly, we do not express a posithe opinlon,

Ouir engagement includes examination, on & teit basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy trust's
Income and expenditune.

The work undertaken to draw owr conclushon |pcledes:
» chicking that the academy trust's activities are consistent with its framewaork and its chariable objectives

# checking that the gevernors and key staff have disclosed thair interest in related partles, discussing the sama with management and
réviewing transactions during the period for undisclosed related party transactions

* chacking that any related party transactions during the period are conducted at normal commercial rates

# checking that scadermy trust expenditure |4 permited by its funding agreerment

& checking that any borrowings enterad into, Including leases, are In accondance with the Academmy Trust Hamdboaok

o checking that any Land and building transactions ane in line with the funding agreement and Acadermy Trust Handbook
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Dixons Academies Trust
Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance report on Regularity to Dixons Academies Trust
and the Education & Skills Funding Agency for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Conclusion

I the course of sur work, nothing has come to owr attentlon which suggests in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and
imcome received during the year 1 September 2027 to 31 Asgust 2023 has not been apalied to purposes intendad by Parkament and
the financial ransactions do mot conform to the authorities which govem them,

Lesley Kendrew (Reparting Accountant}
far and on behalf of

BHP LLF

Chartersd Accountants

Mew Chartford House

Centurion Way

Clestkheatan

BONS 308
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Dixons Academies Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

(acluding Income omnd Expenditire Acoourt and Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses)

Incame and endowments fram:
Danations and capital grants
Tranafer from Local Authority and
single academy trust
Charitable activitles:

- Fursfing fior the trust's

- educations| operations
Other trading activities
I stmants

Total

Expenditure on:
Charitable activithes: trust educational
oparations

Tatal

Net income

Transfers batweoan funds

Crthar recognised galnsf{lossesk:

Actuarial (losseslgains on defined
benafit pension schermes

et mavement in funds

Recanciliation af funds
Tatal funds browght farward
Total funds carried forward

Mota Unrestricted  Resiricted  Restricted Total Total
funds general fizeed 2023 2023
£000 furids aisit E000 EODH

EQDd funids Aeclatified
EQDd

1 &6 3,654 3,780 2227

3z 739 [TER) 5,807 5,758 16,B61

4 2,043 99,1482 101,225 83,804

5 5480 590 471

[ 25 25 g
3,483 98,394 9,501 111,378 103,375

F) 3436 98 050 5,250 106, 736 931 587
3436 88,050 5.250 106,736 93,582

ar 344 4,251 4,641 9,793

19 - (1,471) 1,471 .

1929 - 4,564 - 4,864 34,974

47 arar 5,722 9,506 44,767
1.371 2,237 134,273 137,.E81 03,114
1415 5,974 139,535 147,387 137,881

All o Trusts' sctivities derive from continuing operations during the abaove two financial periods,
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Dixons Academies Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2023 - Company Number 02303464

Fined asgats
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current asseld

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabdlities
Creditars: amounts falling dus within one year

Met currgnt assets

Total assets less current llabilities

et assets excluding penslon asset/ Bability

Defined bernefit pension scheme asset/(lability)

Total net assets
Funds of the trust:
Restricted funds

= Fixed asset fund

- Restricted incorme fund
= Pension resenss

Total rastricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Taotal funds

13
14

15
16

17

1329

BEE

19

10x3 203 2032 2032

E000 EDOD EQ0D EO0D

E= ] 42

138,989 134,231
14 a0
6,672 6,404
12,781 10,367
19,582 17,006

_ two7a3) R

8,839 7052

147,866 141,335

147 E6S 141,325

[47a) 3.444)

w7387 __wem

139,995 134,273
5,453 5,61
{473} [3,444]

145,969 136,510

1418 1,371

lﬂlﬂ? 137,881

The financial staterments on pages 78 to 52 were approved by our trustees and authorised for lssee on 12 December 2023 and dne

signed half by:
Mike Blackburn OBE

Chair, Trust Board
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Dixons Academies Trust
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Hotes Mz 022
D00 ECHOE}
Cash flows from oparating activities
et cash provided by operating activities 23 2890 3,744
Mat Cash flows from Envesting activities M (476} (1,865
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting pericd 2414 1,883
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2022 10,367 B.484
Cash and cash aquivalents at 31 August 2003 25 12,781 10,367
M Akt Trsid
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1 Accounting policles

A surirary of the principal accounting palicies adopted [which have baen applied consistently, except whare noted], judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below,

1.1 Basis of preparation

Dinons Academies Trust is & private limited company limited by guarantee Inconporatod in England, The addoess of the registered office
Is ghven in the reference and administrative Details given on page 3 of these financial statemants. Tha nature of owr trust’s operations
and principal activities ane set out in our Trustess’ Repoct on page 5.

The financial statements of our Trust, which is a public bemefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost
convention in accondance with the Financlal Reporting Standard Applicabile in the UK and Republic of Insland [FRS 1032), the Ascaunting
and Reporting by Charities: Statemant of Recommended Practice applicable [o charities preparing their accounts in scoordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) [Charities SORP (FRS 102]), the Academies
Accounts Direction 3002 o 2023 Issued by ESFA, the Charltles Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

The financial staterments are preganed in sterling, which s the functional currency of our trust. Monetary amounts in these financial
staternents are rounded Lo the neanest £1,000.

1.2 Fund acoounting

Unrestricted incoma funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of tha charitablo objects of our trust at
the discretion of our Tristeas,

Restricted Genersl funds are resources subject to specific restrictions imposed by funders or donars and include grants from the
Education and Skills Funding Agency / Department for Education,

Restricted Fised Assets Funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency and other funders, where the asset acquired or created Is held for a specific purpose on a continuing basis,

1.3 Incoming resouncas

All incoming resources are recognised when our trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of receipt and the amount can ba
massired raliably.

Grants are included in the Statemant of Financlal Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of ineosme recepred for specific purposes
but not expended during the period ks shown In the relevant funds on the balance sheet. ‘Where income s received in advance of
meeting any performance-related conditions, there Is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and
i included in ereditors as deferred Income until the performance-related conditions are met. Whiere antithament ooours befode intaeme
in received, the income i accrued and ks incheded in debtors as accrued Incoms,

The general anmsd grant [‘the GAGT) is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which It Is recaivable,
and any abatement in respect of the perod is dediscted from income and & recognised as a liabiligy.

Capital grants are recognised In full when there is an unconditional entitiernent 1o the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grant are
reflected in the balance sheet on the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when thene ks entitlernent and ane nat
deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Other grants from government agencies and other bodies are recognised In the perfod In which they are receivable to the extent the
conditions of funding have been met. Where income Is recelved in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement ocours before income (5 recetved, the income s accrued.

Sponsorship income provided to our trust, which amounts to a donation, i recognised in the Statemant of Financial Activithes in the
perizd In which It s recelvable fwhere there are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt Is probable and It can be
maasurad rellably,

Dusnations are recognised on a recelvablie basis (where there ane no performance-relsted conditions) wheres the receipt is probable and
the amount can be reliably measured, Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to
the extent our trust has provided the goods or services.

Where assets and Rabilities are received an the transfar of an existing academvy into the academy trust, the transferred net assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the bakance sheot at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the acadermy
trust. An equal amaunt of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into our academy trust within donations and
capital grant income to the net assets recedved,
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1.3 Incoming resources (continued)

The value of donated services and gifis in kind provided to owr trust are recognised at their open market value in the period In which
thoy are recebvable In Incoming rescurces, whens the bensfil to ow thest ean be reliably mestered. An eguivalent amount is Inchuded
as expanditure under the relevant heading in the Statemant of Financial Activities, except where the gift Bn Kind was 3 fixed asset in
which case the amount |5 Included in the appropriate catepory and depreciated over the weaful econamic life in acoordance with our
trust policles,

Where the denated good i a fixed asset, it Is measured at fair valuee, unless it Is Impractical to measure this rellably, in which case the
cost of the item to the danor sheuld be used. The galn s recogndsed as Incoma from donations and a corresponding amaunt is included
in the appropiste fixed atset categary and depreciated over the usefu econamic life in atcordance with ouwr trusts policles,

1.4 Resources expended

Expanditune is recognised once there i 4 legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party; it Is probable
that a transfer of economéc benefit will be reguired in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measuwed roliably.
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each sctivity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support
costs involved in undertaking each activity, Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allecated directly to that activity. Shared
costs which contribute to more than one activity and shared costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned
beteten those acthithes on a basis consistent with the use of resourced, Central staff costs ane allocated on the basis of time spent
and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the assets” use.

Charitable sctivities and Governance costs are Incurred on our trusts” educational oparations, including suppost costs and costs relating
to the gavernance of our trust apportioned to charitable activities,

All resgurces expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

1.5 Going concern

Qur trustees assess whether the use of going concerm s appropriate Le. whather there are amy matedial uncertainties related to ovents
or condltions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of owr trust to continue as a going concern. Owr triestees make this
asgessmant In respect of a perlod of at least one year from the dabe of authorization for Bswe af the financial statements and have
concleded that our trust has adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future and there sre no
material uncertainties about our trust to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt & going conbern basis in preparing
the financial staternents.

1.6 intangibde fined assets and amortisation

Intangibbe assets costing £300 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and the cost or
vitlue of the siset can be measured refiably, Intangible assets are initkally recognised at cost and are subsequantly measured at cost
it afl arsartiation and ary provisian for impainmant,

Amartisation Is provided an intangible fived assets st rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over ks
expected wseful life, as follows:

= Purchased computer software 5%

1.7 Tangible fixed assets

Mszets costing ES00 or mare and with a wseful life of mone than three years are capltalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at
eost, et of depreciation and any provision for impalrmant,

Where tangible fived assets have been acquired with the ald of specific grants, either from the govermmant or from the private sector,
they are included in the Balance Sheet af coit and dépreciated over thelr expected useful econamic [ife. Whare thore are specific
condithons attached to the funding reguiring the continued use of asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fiued assef fund
In the Statement Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relnant assets is charged divectly
to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activites. Where tangible fixed assats have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is changed to the unrestricted fund,

Dapreciation |5 provided cn all tanglble fiked assats other than freehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated o wiite
off the cost of sach asset on a stralght-line basis over its eapected useful life, as folows:

* Freahok Bnd Hil

* Freshold buildings 1.67% — 10% straight line
s Leasehold Property 2% — 10 stralght Lina

= Plant and machinery 10% = 20%, straight lne
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

= Furniture and equipment 1036 = 207 straight line
& Computed equipmaent 25% — 339 Wiraight line
= bAotor Vehicles 5% straight Lina

Assets In the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these aswets i not changed untl] they are brought into use
and classified to freehold land and buildings,

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carred out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fiued
asset may not be recoverably, Shortfalls between the carrying value of a fxed asset and their realisabde valie are recognised as
impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Staternent of Financial Acthvitles,

Software purchased independently of computers s incleded in Intangible fixed aizets In accordance with FRS 102,

1.8  Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when recelvable and the amount can be measured reliably by our trust, this s normally
upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank,

1.9 Svocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value after making due allowance far absalete or slow=maving stock.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the
amount prepald net of any trade discount.

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and In hand incliedes cash and highly liquid investments with a short maturity of 12 manths or less fram the date of
acquisition or apening of the deposit or similar acoount.

1.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event; it is probable that a transfer
af economic benefit will be required in setthement and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are
recognised &t the amount owr trust anticipates it will pay 8o settle the debt or the amount It has received as advance payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

Provisions are recognised when our trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which is likely to result in
the trarsfer of economic benefits and the abligation can be estimated reliably,

Prowisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settie the obligation. Where the effect of the time vabue of
maney ks material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflacts
the risk specific to the llability. The urwinding of the discount is recognised within Interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases ane charged on a straight-lne basls over the lease term. There were o benefits received a5 an incentive
to sign an oparating lease contract.

Our trust has four academies whare the bulldings are subject to & contract under the Private Finance initiative (PFI). This transaction
ts accounted for as a leasing transaction as our trust only enjoys the benefit of the premises subject to the restrictions under the PFI
agreement. Our trust does nat hold substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the premises and the property is, therefore,
accounted for as an aperating lease. Consequently, the premises are not recognised as assets In the financial statements of our trust.

The annual charges under the PFl agreement are subject to a fised formula but will vary over time, therefore, the annual charges are
expansed to the income and expenditure account In the year they relate to as this treatment 15 considered more appropriake than
recognition on a straight-line basis,

1.14 Financial instrumants

Our trust only has financial assets and financial liab#ties of a kind that qualify as basic financisl instruments, Basic financlal Instruments
arg inftially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlerment value with the exception of bank loans
which are subsequently measured at amortised cost wsing the effective Interest methad,
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1.15 Invesimenis

Inwestments are carried at cost. Ouwr trustees’ investmant powers ase governed by the Memorandum and Aticles of Association and
Elle GuF trust 1o invest i & wide range of Investment wahicles without restriction,

1.16 Taxatian

Our trust s eonsidened 1o pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedubs & of the Finance Act 2010and, therefore, it meets the definithon
of a charitaile company for UK conporation tax purpotes. Accordingly, our trust i potentially cxempt from taxation, in respect of
income oF capital gaans received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of tha
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exchushely to charitable purposes.

L.17 Pensians

Retirermant benafits to employees of our trust ane provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ['TPS') and the Local Government Penslon
Scheme ['LGFST). These are defined benefit schemes,

The TPS & an unfunded schame and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working ves with our
trust in such away that the pension cost s a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions
are determined by the Gowernment Achuary based on guadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method, TPS s an
unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TRS is treated as a
defined contribution scheme for accounting puemposes and the contribations recognisad in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS Is & funded muti-employer scheme, and the assets are held soparately from those of owr trust In separate trustes
administered funds, Pension scheme assets sre meaduned ot fair value and Babilities are measured on an actuarial basis wsing the
prajected wnit credit method and discounted at a rate eguivalent o the current rate of refurn on a high-guality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the llabllities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennislly and ane updated ot esch balance
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs, and the cost af scheme Introductions, benefit changes,
settlernents, and curtallments, They are included as part of staff costs, as incurred.

Met interest on the net defined benefit labllity/asset 15 also recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities incorporating income
and expenditure sceaurnts and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and Interest Income on the schaema assats,
cafculated by muttiphying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The differance betweaesn the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the schema assets Is recognised
i other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gaing and lesses are recognised Immediately In other recognized gains and basses

1.18 Critical sccounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgemaents are continually evaluated and are based upon historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that ane belkeved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critiead accounting estimates and assumptions

Cuir trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the fulure. The resulting accounting estimates and asswmptions will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual redult. The sstimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of cawsing 2 material
adfestment to the carmyng amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year discussed below.

The present value of the Local Gowernment Pension Scheme defined benefit liobiliy depends on a number of factors that are
determénéd on an actuarial basls using a varlety of assurmptions.

The asturngtions wied in determining the net cost (Income) for pensions include the discount factor rate, Amy changes in thess
assurnptions, which sre disclosed in note 29, will impact the carmying amount of the pension llability, Furthermore, a rofl forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022, has been used by the actuary in
valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences batwaen the figunes derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would Impact on the carrying amount of the pension llability,

1.19 Reserves and Investment policy

Our trustees have accepted the need for general long-term resenves to be malntalned at a level approximately equal to 5% of turnover,
To help fund short and medium-term [mestment, owr trustees may transfer to restricted funds an annual varlable $um up to a
maximum of 12% of government funds, This has not been necessary for the year ending 31 August 2023,

1.20 Redundancy and severance paymants

Whese our trust has a constrsctive lability to make a redundancy paymant, this is recognized as and when the lability arises.
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Whare our trustess have agreed that it is in the interest of owr trust to make 3 severance payment which s not contractual, this s
recognised as a liabllity once the decision to maks a payment has bean ratified at a maeting of our trust board,

1.21 Agency arrangements

Chur trust sets as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments recelved from ESFA and subsequent disbursements
1o students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as our trust does not have control over the charitable application of
the funds. Our trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this s recognised in the statement of
fimancial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 31,

2  General Annual Grant (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, our trust is not subject o Emits on the amount of GAG that can be carrbed
forward from one year to the next,

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds Fuends 2023 2032

E0DO EDD0 £000 EODD

Capital grants - 3,694 3,694 2,193
Other donations e - a6 35
85 3,694 3,780 2,227

The income from donations and capital grants, excluding transfer from local authority and single academy trust, defined ponsions
obligation inherited and donated assets, was £3, 780k (2022 £2,227k) of which £86k was unrestricted (2022: £35k) and E3,694k was
restricted fived assats (2022: £2,192k),

4  Funding for our trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ D000 E000 EDDO
Reclassilied
DE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant [GAG) - LERN #3871 70,618
Other DFESESFA grants - - - -
Start-up grants - B3 B9 444
UIF5hA b 305 305 293
Pupil Presmiuem . 4,950 4,950 4,161
MSAG - 1,130 1,130 -
Others : 4,734 4,734 3,109
= 595,109 95,109 TB.B25
Other Governmaent grants
Local authority grants - 2,548 2,548 2027
COVID-19 additianal funding
(DFESESFA)
COVID-19 recovery premmiem - 1,220 1,220 B12
Othar DFESESFA COVID-19 funding - 165 165 332
COVID-19 additional funding
[nan-DFfESESFA)
iDrther COWVID-19 funding . . - 111
Other Income from our academy
trust’s educational oparatiens 2,043 144 1,183 2.1m
Total 2,043 59,181 101,225 B3,808
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Dixons Academies Trust
Maotes to the Financial 5Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

4 Funding for our trust’s educational operations {continued)

The incame fram funding for educational operations was £101,225k (2022: reclassified E23,808k) of which £2,043 was uwnrestricted
[2022: rechassified £2,101k) and £99, 182k was restricted (2022: reclassified E81, T07k).

The other granis above include FE and Sports Grant, Teacher's pay grant, Teacher's pension grant, Aates rellef, non-recoverable
funding, Redwndancy grant, Acadedmies pre-opening grant, acadesy lease rontal and School Supplementary Grant.

Dur trust has been eligible to claim additional funding kn wear from government suppart schames in response o the coranavinus
[COVID-19) outbreak, The funding received is shown above under 'COVID-19 additional funding (DFESESFA).

* Thie Academy Trust did not recedwe any catch-up pramiurm funding In-year as this was replaced with the recosery premium funding.
However, the brought fonward balance of £18k was fully expended in the year,

= The Academy Trust received £1, 220k of recovery premium funding during the year and was fully expanded with the browght forward
balance of 434k,

= The other DFEFESFA COVID-15 funding ncludes Mational Tutoring Programme, 16-19 fuition funding and school ked tutoring Fend
totalling £165k and was fully expended in the year, These costs are included In note 7 below as appropriate.

® The Trust has naot furloughed ary of its staff during the pandesmic and, therefore, no caim was made under the Coronavirus Job
Retention Schsime,

5  Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Totad Tatal

s funds 23 M2

£000 EQDD DO 000

freciassifiag

Letting's Income 347 347 k1o
kusic income ar e 27 4
(ther Income A6 u 26 178
5o - 590 471

The incaorme from other trading activities was £590k (2022: redassified: E664k) of which E590k was unrestricted {(2032: reclassified:
£471k) and Enil was restricted [2022: Enil),

6 Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Tatal

funds Fuenads 023 FLFF]

£000 Enoa £000 £000

Short tenm depaiits 25 - 15 L]
a5 - 25 B

The income from nvestment income was £25k (2002 £8%) of which £25k was unrestricted (203 ); £8%) and Endl was restricted {HiE22:
£nll).
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Dixons Academies Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

7 Expenditure

Mon-Pay Expenditure
Total Total
Skalf costs Premises Oither 2023 2002
E0GD E000 EDQ0 £000 E000
Trust’s educational operations:
- dirget coits 62 087 B, ERY 70,969 59 816
- allocated suppart costs 12871 915 21,E81 35,767 33, Tbb
75,058 815 30,763 106,736 93,582
Het incomef|expenditure) for the period includes:
2023 2023
EDD) EOD
Operating leass rentals:
PFI 4 643 3575
Other operating leases 384 204
Depreciation 5224 4535
[Gainloss en disposal of fed assets i2) (7
Amontisation of intangible fived assets (incleded within charitable activities — trust's educational 26 35
operations)
Fees payable to suditor for:
- asdit a2 17
- ather services 11 8
Total Tatal
2023 202
E0OD E000
Direct costs — educational operations 10,965 59,816
Suppart costs - educational operations 35,683 33,683
Suppart costs — povormanon a4 E3
106, 736 93,582
Direct costs = eduational operations
Total Total
2023 2022
EQDD E0OD
Wages and salaries 446,250 A 106
Mational insurance 4,783 4,235
Pensions eosts 9170 8042
Supply teachars 1,429 1,120
Staff development 455 356
Educational supplies 7,239 4,799
Examination fees 1,258 1,024
Orther costs 365 85
Total 0,969 59 816
37 Charris B wberra Trund
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

7 Expenditure on charitable activities [continued)

Tortal Total
23 2023
Support codts — educational operations E000 000
Wages and salares 10,068 BAG3
Hatlonal Insurance 220 Jag
Penslons costs 1,406 1,120
Supply staff 513 523
Recristment and other stalf costs 154 EF
Technology costs 1,044 944
Maintenance of premives and squipment 915 a0
Cleaning 554 g4
Bent and rates 167 250
Haat and light 2,800 1,015
Insurance 314 256
Security and transport 353 1B5
Catering 2,131 1,908
Dperating leases 5,026 3,869
Office overheads 1,191 1,255
Depreciation and amortisation 5,250 45T
Education supplios 1,129 G
FRS102 pansion costs 1,111 £A55
Bank charges 22 24
Total 35,643 33,683
1023 2022
Support costs = Govermance £000 EDD
Auditors' rermuneration 53 45
Other costs 3 EH]
Taotal B4 83
8  Staff and Staff Costs
Staff costs
Stafl costs durlng the perlod were: Tatal Taotal
2023 022
£000 E000
Wages and salaries 55, E17 48,913
Social security costs {Incledes Apprenticeship Lewy] 5,603 4,933
Pengsicn costs 10,576 9272
72,006 63,118
Supply staff costs 1,952 1,652
Staff restructuring costs 4391 56
FRS10Z pemtion adjustment a9 534
m '55;3‘5&
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments ao7 249
SEVerance payments g4 27
451 56
38 Dz A sdemary Trusk
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

8 Staff and staff costs ([continued)

Seversnie payments

DOur trust padd 10 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:
EQ— E25,000 10

E25,0001 = £50,000
ES0.001 = £100,000
E100,000 — E150,000
E150, 00

=T — T — . -]

Staff numbsers
The average number of persons employed by our trust during the pedod was as fallows:

2023 202F
Ma. M
Teachars 90 E3Z
Adrninistration and suppart FED ] 76
hanagemient EE] 28
1,751 1,626
2023 2022
FTE FTE
Teachers B0 Bl4
Administration and suppost 653 583
Miamapement EE ] 28
1,576 1425
Highar pald staff
The number of employess whase employes benafits (excheding employer pension costs and NI exceeded E60,000 was:

023 202
o, ha.
E0,001 - £70,000 45 24
£70,001 - £80,000 12 15
£80,001 - £30,000 13 5
£50,001 ~ £10, 00 5 2
E100,001 - E110,000 i 3
E110,001 - E120,000 5 4
E120,001 — £130,000 1 -
£130,001 - £140,000 3 :

E140,001 — E150,000 )
E190,001 ~ E200,000 F 1

Key management personmnel

The key management parsannel of owr trust comprise the tustees and the senlor managemeant team B Ested on page 3. The total
amount of emploves benefits (Inceding employer pension contributions and NIj received by key management personnel for their
services to the Trust was £4.726 million (202 £3,405 millicn),

i Aecmckinriam: Trusd
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

8 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The chief eaecutive officer only receives remuneration in respect of services he provides undertaking his role of chief executive officer,
Trustees did pot recelve any payments ather than reimbursed expenses from Dixons Academies Trust In respect of thalr rofe as
rushees,

During the year ended 31 Awgust 2023, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £134 were reimbursed o 1 trustes (2022
E118). Mo remuneration was paid to any trustee In the year nor in the prior year.

10 Trustees and officers insurance (RPA)

Our trust has opted inte the Department for Edwcation’s risk protection arrangemant [RPA), an alternative to Insurance where the UE
povesnment funds cover [osses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and Officers from claims arsing from negligent acts, armors
or omissions accurring whilst en trust business, and provides cover up ta E10,000000. 1 15 not possible to guantify the trustees and
cifficers’ indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membarship,

11 Central services

Qwr trust has provided tha following central services to our schools during the year:

= Chief exscutive officer

® Deputy chief exacutive officerns

* School Improvernant

® Finance, HR and payroll senices

* Procurement sericed

= [T network and services

» Estate and site management

® Marketing, communications, design services, website managemant and compliance

= Admisslons management and appeals managemant

= Legd services

& GOVEMAnoe werviceg

Ouir Lrust chearges for these services at 8.5% of GAG Income, M3AG and supplementary grant and 7.5% for PRI academies (2022 = 7%).
Tiee actual amownty charged during the year were:

2023 2022

E000 E00
Dixons City Acaderry 479 361
Dimens Allerban Acadsmy k-] FET)
Dibeons Trinity Acsdamy 3437 54
Diwons McMillan Acaderny 347 154
Diwons Kings Acadesry A5G 347
Démons Muskc Primary 162 127
Dimons Marchbank Prirmary 185 144
Dimans Trinity Chapeltown Academny 495 308
Dixons Manningham Prirmary 165 124
Dixans Cottingley Academy 508 an
Dlxons Sixth Form Acadermy 529 352
Dixons Unity Acadenny 495 405
Dixons Brocklands Acadermy 730 A0
Dixons Broadgreen Academy 700 A47
Dixens Fazakerley Acacdemy 455 asT
Diwons Crombeth Academy 196 -
Tatal S— . 1 —_— 4987

m Dhingsd i e Trurid
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Dixons Academies Trust

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

A summarised Income and Expanditure Account for the year ended 31 August 2023 in

respect of the abowe is as follows:

Income

Recharge to scademies

Pre-opening grant

Emengency support grant

Other [4E grant

Trust development grant and appeals

Other income

Funds inherited on transfer of single academy trust
Total

Staff costs

Consultancy

HA and legal sendces

Auadit and accountancy

IT lcensing and softwane
Recruitment and advertising
Advnisgion

Capital purchase
Other
Tostal

12 Other financial income

Irvestment ncome on penskon scheme assets
Interast on panskon scheme Babilities
Tatal

13 Intangible fixed assets

Cost

Al 1 September 2022
Additions

AL 31 August 2023
Amortisathon

Af 1 September 203
Charged in year

At 31 August 2023

Carrying amount
AL 31 Aigust 2022

Ar 31 August 2023

2023 H2E
ED0O D000
7,208 4,987
270 100
. 235
312 L]
G4 53
334 128
739 2,095
B.817 7602
ED00 EQOH
7333 5,505
&0 26
13 35
&0 56
] 277
207 288
P 31
T 505
256 5
8,709 7208
2023 2022
£000 E000
2,000 T3
{2,093 {1,257)
S S
Computer
software
E000
23
581
]
603
539
26
565
az
34

41
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Dixons Academies Trust
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

14 Tangible fixed assets

Freehald Land Leasehold Flantand  Motor vehicles Fixtures and
and buildings land and machinery fittings
bl dings
E000 B0 EO00 EDOO ECD

Cost
At 1 Septerber 2022 36,459 113,725 1,188 57 9,224
Transfer from single academy trust LI - - . 18
Audditions 527 I8 - - 13m
Transfer between classes 497
Disposals . . - {4) :
AL 31 Agust 2023 43,300 114,107 2,288 53 10,543
Daepraciation
At 1 Septembar 2022 10,168 13,365 1,245 azr 5,496
Charged in year 835 2,280 43 ] G0
Dispoaals - - & {4} :
Ab 31 August 2023 11,003 15,645 2,488 a6 6,116
et book values
At 31 August 20232 26,331 100,360 43 15 3728
At 31 August 2023 32,2497 98,462 - ¥ 4,427

Our trust’s frechold properties are subject to charges held by the Secratary of State for Education. Leasehald Properties are held ona
125-year lease from the Local Authority andor Departmeant for Eduecation.

Assals under Computer Total
construction agjulpment
Cost
AL 1 September 2022 &07 12,3320 174 610
Transfer from single academey trust . 12 5807
Additions Gh4 1.k 4175
Transfar batwean classes [457) - -
Dizpasals - - (4]
At 31 Awgust 2023 EB4 13,613 184,588
Depreciation
At 1 Septermber 2002 . 5,063 40,31
Charged in year - 1438 5224
Dispiosals - - ()
Ax 31 August 2023 - 10,501 45,559
Met book values
AR 31 August 2022 437 3,257 134,231
AR 31 August F023 G 3,112 135,509
15 Stock
203 2022
ED0H EQO0
Finished goods and goods for resals 124 240
1xy 240

The stock of goods consists of books, stationery, teaching consumables etc. purchased in 202223 for wse In 2033724,

43 Do Ac-acherrian Tl
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Dixons Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

16 Debtors

Trade dabtors

VAT neconvirabde

(kher debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Othar taxation and soclal security
Other credibors

Aooruals and deferred income

18 Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 222
Redeased from previows years
Resources deferred in the year
Dafarred Income at 31 August 2023

Ratos

UEFShY

Post 16 bursary
GAG clawbaeck
Unifarm

SEN

Mwssic

LCC — salary
Lindon fee
Growth funding
Erterpancy funding

2023 208
£000 £000
145 106
1,256 Lig9
59 117
5,202 5067
6,672 EARD
2023 2022
£000 £000
2,383 2235
1432 1296
2,527 2057
4,402 4,456
10,743 10,044
2023 2022
£000 E000
Ll ] 480
(529) [4480)
598 529
558 529
023 2022
En0a E000
134 157
187 173
100 107
. 65
= 2
- 3
- 1
14
18
135 =
& B
Sah 5%

Deferred imcome hald at 31 August 2023 relates to 2023724 Rates, Unbversal Infart Free School Meals, P16 bursary ete. as shown above.

Dimivss Az mdarrrary Triad
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Dixons Academies Trust
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

19 Statement of funds

Balance ot 1 Balance at
September Gains and 31 August
2023 intame  Expenditure {losses) Transhers 2023
EODG E0D0 £004 EO00 00 E0O
Restricted general funds
Genaral Annual Grant (GAG) 4,003 83,87 (B1,392) - (1471) 5011
Start-up grant - 85 (Eah - - -
UIFSM . W05 {30:5) . . -
Pupil Premium - 4,590 14,990} . a 5
Recovery promium 434 1,230 {1.654) . .
Catch-up premiem 18 - (18} - - -
MSAG . 1,120 {1.120)
Other DIESESFA COVID-19 funding . 165 {165) . . *
Cither grants 1,226 Tail 7. 206) . . 1442
Pansion resenve {3.444) A {1111} 4,264 . [ara)
2,237 98,354 [92,050) 4,864 [1,471) 5874
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer of building/FFE 37,8309 - (E73) - 36,966
Transfer an converson 8,900 5 807 {1, 718) . . 72,857
DFEJESFA capital grants 24,441 3,554 (L322} . . 35,813
Transfars Inan joining trust 1,000 - - - - 1,000
Prévate sector capital sponsarship 198 - (16} - - 182
Capital expenditure from GAG 1,886 . {320) . 1471 3,037
134,273 8,501 |5,250) . 1471 139,995
Total restricted funds 136,510 107,855 (103,300) 4,864 . 145,960
Total unrestricted funds 1,371 3,483 (3,436} - - 1,418
Total funds 137,881 111,378 [10E,73E] 4,E64 . 147 38T

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Restricved funds

Restricted funds represent the cumulative unspent General Annual Grant, ather government grantsfincome and sponsorship income
carried forsard from previcus years in respect of funding received for the specific purpose of our trust's ranning costs excluding fieed
asset, Under the funding agreement with the Seeretany of State, the academies ane not subject to a limit an the amount of GAG that
can ba carriad forward as at 31 August 2023,

Unrestricted fund

Unrestricted funds represent surpluses genorated from othar trading activithes and are to be used 1o support future genaral educational
purposes either of & revenue or capital nature ot the discretion of our trust board,  This includes the net Income transferred from
Dixons Brooklands Academy.

Restrictad fiwad asset fund

This fund represants the cumulative net book value carried forward In respect of our trust’s tangible and intanglble fixed assets plus
any cagital funding received from centralflpcal governmeant and other donors which has not been expended by the balance sheet date,
The capital funding may be used to complete capital profects or undertake maintenance works on existing tanglble ficed assets. The
fund balance also Includes the carrying value of fixed assets of an academy joining our trust from ancther trust and 2l other assets
donated to the Trust,

Penslon resernve

This fund includes the pension reserne which identifies the pension deficit of schoold jolning owr trust from another trust and throwgh
wihich the pension schesme movements are recognised. Whers s pendion valution repodt is received and 8 surplus oF a deficit an the
defined benefit pension scheme Is reported, the movement Is recognised where an asset or liability oocurred, The resesve above s
negathve because it constitutes a Bability.

Dogwa ArmSeray Trusi
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Dixons Academies Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Comparative Information in respect of the preceding period

Restricted genoral funds
General Annual Grant [GhG)
Start-up grant

LIFShA

Pupil Prosmilem

Recowery premium
Catch-up premium

Other DFEMESFA COVID-19 funding
Other COVID-13 funding
Other grants

Pension resena

Restricked fixed ssed funds
Transfer of bullding/FFE
Transfer on canversion

DFESESFA capital grants
Transfers in on jolning trust
Private sector capital sponsarship
Capital axpenditure from GAG

Total restricted funds

Tobal unrestricted fumnds
Tatal funds

Total trust reserves balances

Centrally held reserves — restricted and unrestricbed funds [MAT)

Restricted fived assat fund
PEnsion resenas
Total

Balance at 1 Balarce st
September Galns and 31 August
2031 income  Expenditure lossos Transfers 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£000 EODQ
4 295 T0,618 69,209} [1.'|I"I]1i 4,003
- a44 [a44) ; A

= 293 [293]
- #4161 (4.161] o
- 612 [178) 434
364 - (346 13

7 332 (405]
34 iii {145) .
528 5136 {4,438] - 1,136
IMISJ I{B.ﬂ!-ﬂ-”] |:5;155] 34974 {.'l,.l-lﬂ]
{18,927 T2 669 {54, 778) 34974 {1,701} 2,237
38,712 - (873 37,835
46,642 23,504 {1,537] - 68,909
24,342 2:113 (2.014) - 24,441
1,000 - - - 1,000
134 Fi i{15) . - 193
116 - [131) ] 1,704 1,E86
11 1,546 E!’_EE [ﬂlﬁ?ﬂ] - !.‘]"ﬂ'l !ﬂ.m
92,719 08,665 {89,348) 34,974 - 136,510
95 4,710 {4,234} 3 1,371
53,114 103,375 [93,582) 34,974 - 137, E81
1023 H0E 2
E0:D0 £000
7,871 7052
139,095 134273
(479} {3.444)
147,387 137,881

Our trustees apgroved that all reseres hald by our trust would be centralised. This decision has been taken 40 that all academiss
within our trust &re supported. Consequently, aur trustees have decided to poal all reserves. Accordingly, no surpluses or deficits ane
attributed to particular schoois, but all are beld centrally, Our trustees are committed to ensuring that the balance of reserees
[ET.ET1m as at 31 August 2023 will be used effectively for the benefit of each child wha Is educated within a Dixoas academny,

45

Liseny Arsdemay Trusi

Regaisred Ofow Dicon Oy Aoy, Rpiey Sires, Brsdiord, Wes Sorinbare, BO% TR Regawsd n Ergland Ko, 230086



Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

19 Statement of funds (continued)

Analysls of academies by cost
Teaching and Other Educational Dther costs Total Tatal
educational  support staff supplies encluding 023 22
support staff Costs deprdation
Cosls
£00d £000 £000 £ £0:00 £000
Dixons City Academy 3,710 953 356 825 5,544 5.395
Dizons Kings Academy 3,704 Bar 332 1,036 5,879 5801
Dixons Allerton Academy 7,914 1,391 o205 1,520 11,730 11,139
Dixons Msic Primany 1,489 255 115 2B5 2,145 2,121
Dixens Marchbank Primary 1,815 261 136 422 2,634 2479
Dimans Triniy Acadermy 1 Ti0 G20 327 557 4,333 4,151
Ditwans MebAillan Academiy 1LETG TER 27 G35 4,330 4054
Dixans Mannngham Primary 1617 34 Fi | 253 2,273 2,170
Diwans Trinity Chapeltown 3.952 250 Ar7 765 6044 4,663
Dimons Cottingbey Acadenmy 3.951 G660 450 1,025 6,086 5.363
Dimans Unity Acadeny 30947 650 EOS 2,008 FA10 6553
Dimans Sixth Fonm Acadery 3653 643 556 BFQ 5. 722 4,727
Dixans Central Services 2,366 4,855 E2S 1,597 9,743 11,760
Centre far Growth 258 124 78 7 457 351
Dixans Fazakerhey Acadamy 3611 485 78 1,646 E,520 A
Dixons Broadgresn Acadamy £053 45 1,612 2,089 5400 6757
[Mxoms Brooklands Academy 5326 T30 631 1,547 B,534 &.680
Do Croxteth Acadermy 1244 LLE 263 447 2,492 =

58,900 15,539 9,352 17,605 101,486 B2

20 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 3023 are represented by

Restricted Rastricted 2023 iz
Unrastricted Ganeral Flued Asset Taobal Funds Taotal Funds
Funids Fursds Funds EQOD £000

E00n EDD E00
Intangibde fixed aseats . . 38 38 43
Tangible flxed assots - . 138,985 138,989 134,231
Cisrnent assets 1418 17,196 968 19,582 170596
Cusrrent liabditias = (10,743) - (10,743} (10,044]
Mon-current Eubilities . . s - ;
Pensian scheme Bability - [47a) - [475) {3,444
Total net assets 1,418 5,974 135,995 147 387 137881

21  Capital commitments

2023 2022
ED0a ECO0
Contracted for, but not provided in the finandcal statements 599 283

This commitrnent is a capital project funded by the ESEA through SSICH, This relates (o the internal refurbishment and construction af
A buld canteen extension a1 Dikxons Craxteth Acadery,

Do Acadarram Trusd
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Dixons Academies Trust
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

22 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating Lease
At 31 August F2E, the total of our trust’'s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was:
1023 202
£000 EQDY)
Amounts due within ong year 519 544
Amounts due between one and five years 1,598 1,542
Ampunts due after five years 1,159 1,450
3,276 31576
Other contractual commitments
At 31 August 2023, the total of our trust’s future minimum payments under other cortractual commitments was;
2023 2032
£000 E0{0
Amounts due within ome year 3966 3,557
Amounts due between one and five years iv158 15,307
Amounts due after five years 7829 28,587
48 994 47,751

Our trust occuples premises which are subject to a private finance Initlative (PF1) contract, Our trust Bsell is not party to this sendice
concassion contract, however our trust has entered Into a supporting agreament towands the costs of the local sauthority. The above
relates to commitments o operating payments incleding couts for catering, cleaning, utilities, and other andllary sendoes,

23 Reconciliation of net income/{expenditure)

20323 2023
EDDQ ED00
Mit incormef|ecpenditure) for the reparting perlod (as per the statament of financial
activithes) 4,643 5,3
Adjusted for:
= Amortisation [note 13] 26 35
- Depreciation [note 14] 5224 4,535
- Capital grants frorm DIE and ather capital income 3,694) 12,1492)
- Transfer from single academy trust 5,807) [23804)
= [Profit)fLoss on disposal of fixed asset (2 7
- Imterest receivable [note &) (25} {8}
- Defined benefit pengion scheme obligation inherited THE g,038
= Defined benefit pension schame cost less contributions payable (note 30,31) 1,012 A,621
= Dafined benefit pension scheme finance cost [note 30,31) 99 534
- [Increase)/decrease in stocks 111 {189)
- (ncrease)fdecrease in debbors {183} 13.933)
- Increasef[decrease) in creditors 539 5.325
Net cash provided by |used In) operating activities 280 748
47 Cloorey Bcackerrasn. Trund
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Dixons Academies Trust
Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

24 Cash flows from Investing activities

2023 2022

£000 E00])

Dividends, interest and rants from imesimams 25 8
Proceeds from sale of tangible fwed assets 2 7
Purchase of intangible fived assets 22} (18]
Purchase of tangibbe fleed assets (2,175} [4,054)
Transfer from single academy trust I5,807) (23, 20a)
Capital grants froem DFE and other capital intorme 3,654 2,192
Transfer from single acadermy trusy 5807 23,804
Wt cash provided by/{used In) irvesting activities {a76} {1,B65)

25 Analysls of cash and cash equivalents

At 31 August At 31 August

FLIFE] 2022

E000 £000

Cash In hand and at bank 10,258 B.855
Deposit account (12 months) 2,523 512
Total cash and cash equivalents 12,781 10,357

26 Members liability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute 1o the assets of the Charitable Company in the event of it being
i p while hefshe i3 2 member, or within pne year after hefshe ceates o be & member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10 for the debts and labilities contracted before hefohe ceases o be 3 member.

27 Pension and similar obligations

Our trust’s employees belong to twa principal pension schemes: The Teachers' Pension Schame England and Wabes {TH5) for academic
and related staff, and the Local Gavernment Pendion Scheme [LGPS) for non-teaching staff which Is managed by 'West Yorkshie Pension
Fund, Greater Manchester Pension Fund and Merseyiide Pension Fund, They ane all multi-employver defined banefit schemas.

The latest actuarlal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGRS to the perod ended 31 March
023

Contributions amaunting to £1, 187,700 weare payabla to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022: £1,088,662) and are inchuded within
creditors.

28 Teachers” Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Schome [TPS) ks a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, poverned by the Teachers' Pensions
Regulations 2014, Membership is automatis for teachers, All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TP3 is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and the employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary — these
contributions are credited to the Excheguer. Retirement and other pension banefits are pald by public funds provided by Parliamsant.

Valuvation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Genvesrnimsnt Actisary, using normal actuarial principles, conduscts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in sccordance with the Public
service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review
is to specify the level of future contributions. Actwarial scheme valuations are dependent on assurnptions about the value of future
casts, design of benefits and many other factors. The Eatest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried aut s at 31 March 2016 The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019, The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation an:

» employer contribution rates sot at 23,68% of pansionable pay (inchuding a 0.08% admanistration levy)

# fotal schema [Rbilitles (penslons curvently in paymsent and the estimated cost of future benefits) for senvdce to the effective date of
£218,100 million, and notional assets (estmated future contributions tagether with the notional iInvestmaents held at the valuation
date) of £196, 100 milllon ghdng & nothonal past service deficit of £22,000 million,

4B {Cumorsy Araddarrian Tnni
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

® the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, Is used to determine the notisnal investinent retunn. The curnent SCAPE rate is 2,45 sbove the rate of
OPl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% In excess of prices and 3% in eacess of sarnings. The rate of real ssrmings growth L ssswmed
tobe 2.2%, The assumed nominal rate of return including eaming growth is 4.45%

The piext waluation result is due to be mplemented from 1 Apdl 2024,
The employer's penséon costs pald to TPS in the period amourted to £8.069 milion [2022: £7.252 million).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting docursentation is on the Teachers' Pensions webaite.

Linder the definltfons set out In FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme, Our trust has accounted for its
contributions to the schemse as If it were a defined contribution scheme. Dur trust has set out abowe the information avallable on the
scheme.

29  Local Gevernment Pension Scheme

The LGFS is a fundad defined benefit pension scheme, with the asssts held In separate trustee-admindstered funds, The total
contribution mads for the vear ended 31 August 2023 was £3 438k (2023 £3.626k] of which employer's contributions totalled £2,495%
(2022: £1897k) and employess’ contributions totalled £943k (2022: £729k). The agreed contribution rates for future years are betesen
15.7% & 19.4% for amployers and botwean 5.5% and 12.5% for employses,

Parfiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an academy Erust
closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Schemae llabllities would be met by the Departrment for Education. The guarantes
came into force on 18 buly 2013 and on 21 July 20232, the Department for Education reaffirmead its comemitment to the guarantes, with
a parliamerntary minute pullished on GOV UK,

Principal actuarial assumptions

At 31 August 2023 At 31 August 2023

Range Range

Rate of incraase in salaries 3.75% - 4.30% 3. E0% - 4,405
Rate of increass for pensions In paymentfinflaticn 2.60% - 2.95% 2.70% - 3.00%
Déscount rate for schema labilities 5.00% - 5.30% 4,108 - 4,30%
Inflation assumption (CP1) 2,60% - 2.95% & H0% - 3.05%
Pansion accounts revaluation rate 1.60% 2.70%

Cormdmitation a-l'pu,-m.inn: to lump sums

The current mortality assumptions Include sufficient allowance for future Improvements in mortality rates. The assumed kife
expactations an retirement age 65 are:

At 31 August 2023 At 31 August 20232
Retiring today Avorage
MAalag 20.6 21.0
Females 21.3 4.0
Retiring in 20 pears
Males 216 2.2
Females 4.9 5.7
Sensitivity analysls
Ak 31 August 2023 At 31 August 2022

EQOD E000
Discount rave +0.1% {azg) {1,193}
Discount rate -0L1% 1,026 1,403
Mortality assumption = 1 year increases [a02) 1698}
05

Mortality assumption — 1 year decreasa 01

CPI rate +0.1% 950 1,083

CM rate 0.1% 347) {1,080}
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Dixons Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Crur trust’s share of the assets In the scheme

Fair valee at 31 August 2023 Fadr value at 31 August 2023
£000 EDO0
Equity instruments 36418 33,800
Bonds 5,618 5,186
Property 2,601 1492
Cagh and other 4,355 A.120
Total market value of assets 49,032 45,598
The actual return on schemse assets was £534,000 (3022 £484,000)
Armount recognised In the statement of financial activities
2023 2022
£004 E0O0
Current service cost (et of employes contributions) [3,498) [6.480]
et interest cost (94) [534)
Past service cost * 125]
Administrative expenses [E]] [4)
Tatal operating charge (3,606) (7.052)
Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligations
Fairk! 202
E0O0 ERQ
At 1 Seprember 49,042 56,591
Upon cormersion 2020 .
Current sendioe cost 3498 BA85
Past service cost = 25
Inkerest cost 2,099 1,257
Employee contribiutions 943 FFL]
Actuarial {gainhflass (7.388) [35,213)
Banefits pald (03] 30
Mat Increase Inassets from disposalafacquititions - 19,134
Ak 31 August 45,511 i) a2
Changes in the fak value of our trust’s share of schome assets
2023 2022
E0D0 E000
At 1 Septembor 45,598 25,281
Upon conversion 1,232 .
Irtenast incorms 2,000 T3
Return an plan assets [excluding net interest on the net defined
pensian liability) = -
Actuarlal galn/f{loss) [2.524) {239)
Employer contributions 2,495 1,897
Employes contributions 943 729
Benefits pald (703) an
Administrative expenses 9 {4)
Met increase in assets from disposals/acqulsitions - 10,096
At 31 August 49,032 45,508

The workings of the net valuation of the combined pension schemes shows & defieit of £479k which includes & ret aisst valuation of
E250k for Dixons Acadernies Trust (WYPF], EB9EL for Dixons Brooklands Acadery (GMPF], £391k for Dixans Fazskerdey Acadermy (MPF)
and £457k for Dikons Broadgreen Academy (MPF]. Howeser, the trustees belisve that i arder to shaw a true and falr wiew the mot
asset should not be recogrised (swiplus restricted to nil) and as a result we have adjusted the actusrial gain on the defined benefit

abligations so that the adjusted deficit of 479k s recognised on the balance sheet.

50

sy Acpdemey Trgw

Fagritaind (fen: Dwor Dty Acmdorry, Bphey Street, Bradiord, Sest Sorlabare. B{F TRR Begrsesd i Erglarad Bo. 2300884



Dixons Academies Trust
Maotes to the Financial 5tatements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

30 Related party transactions

Dwing to the nature of our trust and the composition of our trust board being drawn from local public and private sector organisations,
transactions may take place with organisations in which gur trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are
conduched in acoontlance with the requirements of the Academy Trest Handbook, Inchuding notifdng the ESFA of all transactions made
an o after 1 April 2019 and obtaining thair appraval where required, and with our trust’s financial reguelations and normal procirement
procedures relating to connected and related party transactions,

Exoeed Academies Trust, a trust which Mr B Fltzpatrick is a trustee:

During the year, our trust received income of £2,500 [2022; £6,000) relating to suppart services provided and incurred expanditure of
£4,382 (2022: nil) relating to placement funding and training,

Beckfoot trust, a trust which Sir Mick Weller is & trustes:

Dwring the wear, our trust recalved Income of £nil (2022: £6,250) relating to subseription to our opensource platform and incurred
eapenditure of £5.000 (2022: ni] relating to Bradford Research Champlons management far praviding training to stalf and leaders,

The transactions followed our trust's procurement process, Where sarvices have exceeded £2 500, the elermeant above is provided at
my more than costl. Any transactions with the above organksations comply with the requirements sat cut in the Academy Trust
Handbook.

31 Agency arrangements

Caur trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students a3 an agent for the ESFA In the accounting period ending 31 August 2023, our
trust recaivid EGO0K (2022 £298K) and disbursed E412% (2022: £1388) from the fund. Each acadesmy may retain up to 5% of the fund
income to cover assoclated administration costs. Any unspent monied are retained for future years spending to a masimum of 2 years.
The value of unspent funds as at 31 August 2023 and included In other creditors was 468K [2022: E280K).

2023 022

£000 ED00
Fund braught forward 280 120
Bursary funding recelved B00 g
Total incoma BBO 418
Fundls distritiutod 393 138
5% admin cost retention 149
Tatal costs 412 138
Funds carried forward 468 280

Collaborative arrangement

Chur trust is in the 2 year of the 3-year collaborative arrangement with largs trusts across the Bradford district running eardy carears
framework/national professional qualifications and education endowment research, Our trust through its centre for growth proside
training and coaching of key BDAT senior headers from all BDAT schoals in phase 1 roling out to other leaders in phase 2, Our trust has
now completed phase 1 of the programme. During the year the trust receiwed E20,000 from BDAT (2021/22: £29,240) for year 2
programimes and will receive £25,000 in 202324 to complete the project. The total funding for the 3 yoars & £74,240,

This wark ks being delivered at cost as it Is collaborathee werk across multl academy trusts. A3 such thene is na prafit ta this wark and
ESFA has been notified of this arrangemant.
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Dixons Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

32 Transfer of newly converted academies and existing academy into our trust

Diwons Croxteth Academy

Dixons Croxteth Academry (forrerly De La Salle Acsderyy Trust] was a single scademy trust transferred into Divons Acadermies Trust on
1 Movember 2022, At the date of transfer in, the cperations, assats and liabilities were transferred v owr trust at Emil consideration.
Tha trarsfer has been acoounted for a5 a combdnation that is in substance a gt The assets and liabilities transferred were valued st
thedr historic cost and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as
a net (gain/loss) in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations = transfer from singhe academy trust.

The table balaw 28t out the values of the identifiable assets and Babllities transferred and an analysts of their recognition in the S0Fa

Restricted Restricted 2023
Linrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Fumns Funids Fundds Furnis
E'D00 E£000 E'Do0 E0DD
Tangible floed assets
Leasehold land and bulidings - . 5777 5177
Other tangibhe fined assets g - 30 3
Current assets
Cagh and Bank 743 - - 743
Dabtoes Bi . - BE
Current liabilities [80) - . (90
Haon-current liabilities
LGPS pansion deficit . (7E8) . (728)
Mot assots//{llabllities) 739 {788} 5 807 5,758

33 Post balance sheet events

Dimans Newall Gresn Academsy i 3 new secandary fres school that opened on 1 September 2023 serving students aged sevan to shiteesn
in the Wythenshawe district of Manchester. The bullding Is under construction and managed by the DFE project team. The site is in
educational use but under temporary scoommodation. When the bullding Is completed, and contral af the site Is handed to the
academy trust an opening value will be recognised in the financial statements in 2023,/24, The accownting entry will be to recognise
freehold bulldings and to recagnise the value within "donations and capital grantz" in the statement of financial acthvities. The asset
will be depreciated from this point in acoordance with FRS102 (wection 17) and the SORP [modules 6 and 10).
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